STUDENT-PARENT HANDBOOK 2021-2022



Holy Spirit Catholic School 2820 Central Avenue Great Falls, MT 59401 Phone: (406) 761-5775

STUDENT/PARENT HANDBOOK

- All parents and their students enrolled at Holy Spirit Catholic School are required to sign
 the form at the end of this handbook stating they have read the rules and regulations
 outlined in it and that they agree to abide by those rules.
- The form must be signed and returned as soon as possible, but no later than two weeks from the first day of attendance.
- Failure to have a signed form on file will not prevent the school from enforcing its policies but may result in the student not being able to continue enrollment at the school until it is signed.
- In light of the unique situations which may arise in the educational process, and because it is impossible to foresee all school issues that arise, the faculty and administration reserve the right to address and to take appropriate action for any such situations not specifically referenced in this handbook. In addition, in view of the religious mission of Holy Spirit Catholic School, it is expressly understood that the school may take actions in cases where moral offenses occur which reflect adversely on the school, the Catholic Diocese of Great Falls-Billings or the Roman Catholic Church, or which interferes with the ability of the school to perform its religious mission or to effectively maintain the intimate working relationship of the school and the Catholic Church.
- This handbook may be modified by the school after reasonable notice to the parents/students of the effective date of any changes.
- Any section headings are for convenience of use, and shall not affect the interpretation of any provisions.
- If the school should elect not to take action in a particular situation, this shall not be construed or interpreted as a waiver or preclude the school from acting in a subsequent situation of the same or similar kind.

PARENTAL ROLE

- Holy Spirit Catholic School recognizes parents as the primary educators of their children.
- In this handbook, the term parent refers not only to a student's natural or adopted parent, but to a student's non-parent legal guardian or to any person or agency authorized to act in place of parents.
- Parents are expected to display an attitude of respect and support toward the school, the staff, and the educational process by:
 - ✓ Supporting the school's mission and commitment to Christian principles;
 - √ Supporting the school policies as outlined in the school handbook and regulations;
 - √ Ensuring their son/daughter has read this handbook;
 - ✓ Participating fully in school programs that are developed to support the education of their children;
 - ✓ Remaining informed about and involved in the religious instruction of their children.
- A cooperative relationship between Holy Spirit Catholic School employees and parents is essential for the overall education of the students.
- In the event a parent desires to discuss a problem with his/her child's teacher, the parent should make an appointment for a private meeting with the teacher. Teachers welcome the opportunity to discuss a matter of concern with parents.
- Any parent who wishes to speak with the school principal may do so, but only after meeting(s) with the teacher have failed to meet the concerns of the parent.
- If a parent repeatedly or seriously violates proper school protocol, displays inappropriate, disrespectful, disruptive or harassing behavior toward teachers or toward school, students, parish, or diocesan staff, the school may take corrective action.
- At the discretion of the principal, such corrective action may include but not restricted to the following: imposition of particular rules or procedures the parent must follow in interacting with the school and its students and staff or dismissal of the parent's child(ren) from enrollment at the school.

About Holy Spirit Catholic School...

With parish schools in existence since 1947, the Eastside Catholic Community consolidated its individual schools to form Blessed Trinity Catholic School, which opened on August 26, 1985.

The parishes of the Eastside Catholic Community merged in 1998 to form one worshiping body known as Holy Spirit Catholic Parish, and in 1999 the school once again was able to embrace the same name as its parish and became known as Holy Spirit Catholic School.

Registration of a student and continued attendance at classes constitute an express agreement on the part of students, parents and/or guardians to comply with all the published rules, regulations and policies of the school.

The school reserves the right to amend this handbook. Parents will be promptly notified if changes are made.

PLEASE DIRECT YOUR SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THIS HANDBOOK TO THE SCHOOL OFFICE.

NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION AS TO STUDENTS

Holy Spirit Catholic School admits students of any race, sex, national origin, age (in accordance with the law), and handicapping condition (if, with reasonable accommodation on the part of the school, the student with the handicapping condition can be accommodated), to all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the school and in the administration of educational policies, admissions policies, scholarship and loan programs, athletic or other school-administered programs. This policy does not conflict with the priority given to Catholics for admission as students. This policy also does not preclude the ability of the school to undertake and/or enforce appropriate actions with respect to students who advocate on school property or at school functions any practices or doctrines which are inconsistent with the religious or moral tenets of the Catholic faith.

NON-CATHOLIC STUDENTS

The presence of students from other faiths provides a wonderful diversity to the school. However, the presence of non-Catholic students in the school shall not alter the primacy of Catholic religious formation as an integral component of the educational program in the school. As such, non-Catholic students are expected to participate in the religious formation and educational programs of the school and must participate in school Masses, retreats and other religious activities. While Catholic teaching respects the various faith traditions of the students attending the Catholic school and their families, parents must be aware that it is the Catholic position on matters of faith and morals that will be taught.

PHILOSOPHY

Holy Spirit Catholic School exists for the specific purpose of supporting parents in forming the minds and character of students in the spiritual and moral values of Jesus Christ according to the

teachings of the Roman Catholic Church. We believe that the image of God is present in students and staff alike. We believe that every student is a capable, worthwhile individual. Therefore, as we promote academic excellence while fostering the total development of each student, we believe we must create an atmosphere in which students and staff reflect faith, prayer, love, affirmation, responsibility and creativity while serving our community.

MISSION STATEMENT

With Jesus as the Master Teacher, Holy Spirit Catholic School develops in each child an active and creative mind, a sense of understanding Catholic values through compassion, respect and service to others, and the courage to act on those values.

"Where academics are guided by the Spirit ..."

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION ONE - STUDENTS	11
INSTRUCTION	11
ACADEMICS	11
CHRISTIAN FORMATION	11
<u>SERVICE</u>	11
<u>HOMEWORK</u>	11
MAKE-UP OF CLASS WORK, HOMEWORK, OR TESTS	12
CHURCH NIGHT	12
GYM CLOTHES	13
COMPUTER USAGE	13
USE OF SCHOOL NAME, LOGO AND PICTURES OF SCHOOL ACTIVITIES	14
<u>LIBRARY</u>	14
PROMOTION AND RETENTION	14
RECORDS	14
SCHEDULES	15
STANDARDIZED TESTING	15
CO-CURRICULAR AND EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES	15
GUIDELINES FOR CO-CURRICULAR OR EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES	16
CO-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES	17
FIELD TRIPS	17
SPELLING BEE	17
OPTIMIST ORATORICAL CONTEST	17

	JUNIOR TOASTMASTERS	17
	EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES	17
	SCHOOL SPONSORED ACTIVITIES	17
	ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ATHLETICS NOT SPONSORED BY HOLY SPIRIT	18
CC	<u>ONDUCT</u>	19
	DISCIPLINE	19
	BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS	20
	PLAYGROUND EXPECTATIONS	20
	GENERAL PLAYGROUND RULES	20
	SPECIFIC PLAYGROUND RULES	21
	BREAKING THE RULES	22
	HARASSMENT POLICY FOR STUDENTS IN CATHOLIC SCHOOLS	22
	REPORTING PROCEDURE	24
	CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE BEHAVIORS	25
	<u>DEFINITIONS</u>	25
	EXAMPLES OF IMMEDIATE EXPULSION	26
	APPLYING CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE BEHAVIOR	26
	<u>RESPECT</u>	26
	DRESS CODE	27
ΑT	TENDANCE	28
	<u>ABSENCES</u>	29
	ABSENCE DEFINED	29
	ABSENCE CATEGORIES	29
	EXCUSED ABSENCE	29
	UNEXCUSED ABSENCES	30
	SCHOOL-RELATED ABSENCES	30

	Go To Table Of Contents
ADDITIONAL ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES	31
FOR ALL ABSENCES	31
ANTICIPATED ABSENCES	31
TWENTY-DAY RULE	31
TARDIES/EARLY EXITS	32
HEALTH & SAFETY	33
<u>HEALTH</u>	33
PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS	33
<u>IMMUNIZATIONS</u>	33
MEDICATION	33
PRESCRIPTION	33
NONPRESCRIPTION	33
ASSISTING WITH MEDICATIONS	34
PRECAUTIONS	34
<u>ILLNESS</u>	34
COMMUNICABLE DISEASES	34
<u>SCREENINGS</u>	35
SAFETY	35
ABUSE REPORTS	36
<u>EMERGENCIES</u>	36
STUDENT INFORMATION	36
<u>PROCEDURES</u>	36
NUT ALLERGIES	36
PLAYGROUND SUPERVISION	36
BEFORE AND AFTER SCHOOL	36

37

DURING SCHOOL

	Go To Table Of Contents
<u>TRAFFIC</u>	37
PROHIBITED AREAS	37
DROPPING OFF AND PICKING UP STUDENTS	37
<u>AWARDS</u>	37
MIDDLE SCHOOL	38
FELLOWSHIP DAY	38
MAGAZINE SALES	38
<u>SKI TRIPS</u>	39
STUDENT COUNCIL	39
SOCIAL EVENTS	39
LOSS OF PRIVILEGES	39
STUDENT PROPERTY	39
PERSONAL ITEMS	39
SEARCH AND SEIZURE	40
BICYCLES	40
LOST AND FOUND	40
BRINGING MONEY TO SCHOOL	40
SCHOOL PROPERTY	41
LOCKERS AND DESKS	41
SECTION TWO	41
<u>PARENTS</u>	41
COMMITMENT	41
NON-CUSTODIAL PARENT RIGHTS	42
ORGANIZATIONS	42
SCHOOL BOARD	42

43

HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATION

	Go To Table Of Contents
BOOSTER CLUB	43
FAMILY MENTORING PROGRAM	44
SERVICE AT SCHOOL	44
SECTION THREE	44
COMMUNICATIONS	44
PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES	44
PROGRESS REPORTS AND GRADES	45
PROBLEM SOLVING	45
STEPS TO TAKE	45
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	46
ELECTRONIC WEDNESDAY ENVELOPES	46
SECTION FOUR	47
<u>FINANCE</u>	47
<u>TUITION</u>	47
<u>SCHOLARSHIPS</u>	47
PAYMENT OF TUITION	47
OVERDUE TUITION PAYMENTS	47
TUITION REFUND	48
REGISTRATION PROCEDURES AND FEES	48
REGISTRATION COMPLETION	48
REGISTRATION FEE	48
OTHER FEES	48
SECTION FIVE	50
GENERAL	50

HOT LUNCH PROGRAM

GUARDIAN OF ANGELS – EXTENDED CARE PROGRAM

50

51

INTERNET USE CONDUCT POLICY		52
ACCEPTABLE USE OF ELECTRONIC I	<u>NETWORKS</u>	52
TERMS AND CONDITIONS		52
INTERNET SAFETY		54
<u>STUDENTS</u>		55
ACCESS TO ELECTRONIC INFOR	MATION, SERVICES, AND NETWORKS	55
<u>GENERAL</u>		55
<u>CURRICULUM</u>		55
ACCEPTABLE USES		55
INTERNET SAFETY		56
CONFIDENTIALITY OF STUD	ENT INFORMATION	57
INTERNET ACCESS CONDUC	T AGREEMENT	58
WARRANTIES / INDEMNIFIC	CATION	58
<u>VIOLATIONS</u>		58
<u>APPENDICES</u>		59

SECTION ONE - STUDENTS INSTRUCTION

ACADEMICS

CHRISTIAN FORMATION

As a Catholic school we realize the threefold purpose of Christian education:

- 1. To teach doctrine
- 2. To build community
- 3. To serve others

As a means of supporting parents' primary role in forming their children's faith lives, religion classes are held daily in each classroom. Current texts teaching faith, moral development and Catholic doctrine are used in kindergarten through 8th grade.

Parents, with the guidance of their parishes, provide the sacramental preparation of their children. The children receive initial sacraments through these parish programs.

Children's liturgies, classroom prayer services and reconciliation celebrations are experienced frequently during the school term. The students take an active part in the planning and celebration of each liturgy and are encouraged to dress accordingly on Mass days. Parents are invited to all these celebrations.

SERVICE

In addition to school organized service opportunities, Holy Spirit encourages its students to participate in church and community service as they are able.

HOMEWORK

Homework is an integral part of the school's academic program and is given for special projects, remedial activities, drill, practice and review. It helps the student develop study skills and self-discipline and helps the teacher understand or detect problems in the student's learning pattern. Teachers will assign homework, which is an appropriate extension of a meaningful classroom activity to help the student master skills and subject matter, and to develop responsibility and independent study skills.

Parents are instrumental in encouraging good homework habits and establishing an atmosphere conducive to study. While it is the primary responsibility of the student to

complete homework assignments, parents are encouraged to take an active interest in their child's homework. Each teacher's homework expectations, policy for grading homework, and its effect on the final grade will be part of the class syllabus given to the students at the beginning of the class. Homework may be required at all grade levels with a mix of mandatory and voluntary work for extra credit.

Parents should encourage the student to set aside a certain part of the day for homework assignments.

Because of the difference in students, the time devoted to homework will vary.

Generally, if students have used their time well during class, work required at home should take no more than these times for these grade levels:

Grade 1 - 10 minutes Grade 5 - 50 minutes

Grade 2 - 20 minutes Grade 6 - 60 minutes

Grade 3 - 30 minutes Grade 7 - 1 ½ - 2 hours

Grade 4 - 40 minutes Grade 8 - 1 ½ - 2 hours

Parents should never excuse a child from homework because of an athletic or social event.

MAKE-UP OF CLASS WORK, HOMEWORK, OR TESTS

A student who has been absent from school is responsible for completing his/her make-up work. Regardless of the nature of the absence, makeup work will be assigned and full credit granted if completed on time. If work is not completed in a reasonable amount of time as determined by the teacher, the missing work may not receive credit. When there is prior knowledge of an absence, students may request assignments from teachers prior to the absence. Generally, a student will have 1 day make-up time for 1 day absence, 2 days for 2 days absence and 1 week makeup for more than 3 days absence. If the makeup is completed during the assigned time, there is no deduction for an excused absence. Assignments completed while a student is suspended, in or out of school, will receive full credit unless not completed on time. Students are expected to take tests immediately upon returning to school after absences if they had prior knowledge of the test schedule; otherwise, students will arrange make-up tests with their instructor.

CHURCH NIGHT

Church Night is Wednesday and it is the intent of Holy Spirit to honor church night in the scheduling of all activities. Except in the case of special circumstances, approved by the Principal, all students must be leaving the building or field by 5:30 pm.

GYM CLOTHES

Each class has assigned P.E. days. All children should wear proper athletic shoes that do not leave black marks on the floor and comfortable clothing on their P.E. day. (If girls wear slacks, participation is easier.) Middle school students are required to dress out for each P.E. class into either shorts, sweats or wind pants as well as t-shirt and appropriate shoes. See the section on Dress Code.

COMPUTER USAGE

Internet access is available to Holy Spirit School students and staff who shall conduct themselves while using this service in a responsible, ethical and polite manner and must comply with the regulations of the school's "Computer and Internet Use Policy" found within this handbook at the end of Section Five.

The iPad use agreement must be signed by a student's parents before a student can use the iPad. See agreement in the Appendix.

The purpose of the school-provided Internet access is to facilitate communication in support of research and education. To remain eligible as user, student's use must be in support of and consistent with the educational objectives of the school. Access is a privilege, not a right. Access entails responsibility.

- 1. Computers, iPads, and other Internet devices may be used by students only for school or parish purposes. Use for personal purposes is not permitted.
- 2. No student may use a computer unless permission is first obtained from a staff member. Students may not use the Internet unless they have been signed on by a staff member using a password.
- 3. No student may monitor or participate in any chat room or similar site, or receive or send E-mail. If a staff member believes that a student has a need to send or receive E-mail, the staff member will send E-mail drafted by the student and open E-mail directed to the student.
- 4. Student use of and work on the computer and Internet is not private, and may be checked by a staff member at any time.
- 5. No student shall load any program, use any computer disk, or make any programming changes on a computer without permission of a staff member.
- 6. Copyright: Users shall not:

- a. Copy and forward
- b. Copy and download; or
- c. Copy or upload to the network or Internet server any copyrighted materials, without approval by the computer system operator, a teacher or other school administrator. Copyright material is anything written by someone else. It could be an e-mail message, a game, a story, or software. Do not plagiarize other's work (copy and use as your own).
- 7. Any student violation of this policy will result in discipline appropriate to the nature of the violation, up to suspension from school.

USE OF SCHOOL NAME, LOGO AND PICTURES OF SCHOOL ACTIVITIES

The use of the school name, logo and pictures of school activities or of other students without the prior approval of the school is prohibited whether done in the printed word, through technology, or by any other means.

LIBRARY

The school library is available to all grades. Library privileges include checking out books, encyclopedias and magazines. All students are responsible for returning borrowed materials and reporting losses. Students with overdue books will not receive their next report card until the fines are paid and the books are returned.

PROMOTION AND RETENTION

The final decision to promote or retain a student should be a cooperative one of parent, teacher and administrator. In cases where the home and school disagree, the decision of the principal is final.

RECORDS

According to the Family Education and Privacy Act of 1974, all personal information relating to the student that is kept on school records may not be released without the consent of parents or legal guardians. All student records are open to parents by appointment with the principal.

SCHEDULES

<u>Daily</u>. The first bell rings at 7:55 A.M. and the second bell / tardy bell rings at 8:00 A.M. Grades PreK-3 dismiss at 3:15 P.M. while grades 4-8 dismiss at 3:20 P.M. Playground supervision begins at 7:45 A.M. Students may not enter the school without permission from their teacher or in the company of a parent prior to 7:55 A.M. Failure to observe this entrance requirement may result in disciplinary action. Exception will be to go directly to

Extended Care (Please see Playground Supervision). Copies of the middle school class schedule and the specialists class schedule are included in the Appendix.

<u>Yearly</u>. A copy of school calendar can be found within the Appendix of this handbook (Subject to change).

STANDARDIZED TESTING

The school will administer the MAP test three times each year to each student. The testing window is shown on the school calendar in the appendix. Students K-8 are tested in Math, Reading, and Language. In addition, students in grades 3-8 are tested in Science.

The school asks that parents, if at all possible, do not plan family outings during the testing week(s), and that children come to school well rested with a nutritious breakfast.

CO-CURRICULAR AND EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

Holy Spirit Catholic School offers a varied program of co-curricular and extracurricular activities to aid students in their physical, intellectual, social, emotional, cultural and spiritual development. However, the prescribed course of studies does take precedence over these activities. Students who are experiencing serious academic difficulty need to devote their time and energy to their studies, even if this means that involvement in cocurricular or extracurricular activities is curtailed. School appointed sponsors of cocurricular and extracurricular activities have the right and responsibility to expect certain behavior from all student participants. Students participating in these activities will be obligated to observe all the established standards for that activity as well as all relevant aspects of the Parent/Student Handbook governing student conduct. Parents are encouraged to keep the line of communication open at all times between the school, its coaches and sponsors and the student. If a problem arises, parents are to address it with the coach/sponsor as soon as mutually convenient. If further discussion is necessary, contact the athletic director or school administration as soon as possible. Extra-curricular activities offered at Holy Spirit Catholic School are as follows: basketball, football, crosscountry, track and volleyball.

In order to participate in extracurricular activities at Holy Spirit Catholic School, students must:

- 1. Maintain status as a participant;
- 2. Be passing the required courses with a 74% minimum average at the time of participation;
- 3. Be in attendance on the full day of a scheduled activity. Exceptions are: school activities, medical appointments or pre-arranged (prior day) excuses as determined by the Principal. Any student not in attendance a full day who attends a

practice, game, meeting or performance, must be suspended from the next competition, meeting or performance.

GUIDELINES FOR CO-CURRICULAR OR EXTRA- CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

- 1. Activities will be conducted with the highest ethical and moral standards.
- 2. Inappropriate behavior and/or use of inappropriate language or gestures will not be tolerated.
- 3. Religious activities are an integral part of Holy Spirit Catholic School. Coaches, sponsors, parents are encouraged to support our students in all religious activities including attendance and participation, without reservation, in the Masses held before school or during school, retreats, Masses for teams or performing groups, and various religious activities and functions provided in the school setting.
- 4. A cooperative spirit, exemplary conduct on and off the playing field, and a desirable level of competition among participants must be preserved.
- 5. In order to participate in extracurricular activities, students must have a physical exam on file in the administrative office prior to participation (practice or games). Physicals must be renewed each school year. Thus, any physicals must be completed after May 1st prior to the beginning of the next school year.
- 6. All activity participants and his/her parents must submit a signed participation consent/release form to the administration prior to activity participation.
- 7. All activity and participation fees must be paid prior to participation.
- 8. Students must be in attendance at school in order to participate in the activity. Special considerations may be granted by the administration if submitted in advance. Such decisions will not set a precedent for any future considerations.

ACADEMIC ELIGIBILITY RULES

In order to participate on an athletic team at Holy Spirit Catholic School a student must be passing all classes with no Fs (core and electives) in order to be eligible.

Grades will be calculated at the end of each grading period

- 1. There are eight (8) grading periods; one at each quarter and each mid-term report.
- 2. If a student is determined eligible at a grading period they are eligible to play without grade checks until the next grading period.
- 3. If a student is determined to be ineligible at the end of a grading period they are placed on probation.

- 4. A student placed on probation will not be able to participate until they become eligible with no F's.
- 5. A student on probation will have weekly grade checks.
- 6. Grade checks are conducted at the end of the school day on the last school day of the week.
- 7. During the weekly grade check, if a student is determined to be ineligible, they will be ineligible until grades improve to passing with no Fs in each class.
- During the weekly grade check, if a student becomes eligible they will be eligible until the next weekly grade check; however, they are still on probation and will continue with the weekly grade check through the remainder of the grading period.
- 9. Probation lasts until the next grading period.
- 10. Probation does not carry over from year to year.

CO-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

FIELD TRIPS

Although field trips are an important part of education, they are a privilege, not an absolute right. A student can be denied participation in a field trip if (s)he fails to meet academic and behavior requirements. On these trips, students must remember that they represent their school and their families. Information will be sent to parents, whose signature <u>must</u> be obtained for every field trip. A blank permission form is included within the Appendix of this handbook. In the event a child forgets to bring a permission slip home, please call the school office to request an additional copy.

SPELLING BEE

All 5-8 graders participate in a classroom spelling bee in February. Winners from each classroom then participate in the school spelling bee. The top two winners at the school spelling bee take part in the Cascade County spelling bee in early March.

OPTIMIST ORATORICAL CONTEST

Each year, generally in the spring, students in grades 6-8 are invited to participate in an oratorical contest sponsored by a local Optimist Club. Speeches are written and presented by students on a given topic. Holy Spirit staff help coach the participants.

JUNIOR TOASTMASTERS

Each year from January through early April students in grades 7-8 are invited to be a

member of Junior Toastmasters sponsored by a local Toastmasters Club. It is a program for students to improve their oral communication skills in both prepared and impromptu speeches. At the end of the program, students plan, coordinate and run a meeting to display their skills in front of their families.

EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

SCHOOL SPONSORED ACTIVITIES

- Football 7th and 8th
- Cross Country 6th, 7th, and 8th
- Girls Basketball 5th, 6th, 7th, and 8th
- Boys Basketball 5th, 6th, 7th, and 8th
- Girls Volleyball 7th and 8th
- Track 6th, 7th, and 8th

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ATHLETICS NOT SPONSORED BY HOLY SPIRIT

The following programs are not sponsored by the school, but are available to Holy Spirit students. Watch for notices in the Wednesday Envelope about these athletic programs.

- Heisey League Programs :: (406) 453-1211
 - O Basketball grades 3-6; separate boys and girls teams; season runs mid-January - February.
 - Volleyball grades 1-6; mixed boys and girls teams; season runs March -April.
- Salvation Army Football :: (406) 453-0391 grades 3-6; mixed boys and girls teams; season runs September October.
- Great Falls Youth Soccer Association :: (406) 727-0816 Season runs June -August.
- Great Falls Gymnastics Center 727-8782
- Baseball City-wide leagues begin sign-up in spring.

⇒ PARENT COOPERATION ←

Parents are expected to cooperate with the disciplinary recommendations made by the teacher and/or principal.

CONDUCT

DISCIPLINE

The purpose of all discipline is self-discipline. Students who lack self-discipline or who violate the rights of others can expect disciplinary action. Each offense will be addressed on an individual basis according to the nature of the infraction and the severity of the case. There is no requirement for progressive discipline. Any individual infraction may require the school to administer serious disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion.

Rules and regulations are for students' growth in learning to accept the consequences of their actions within the school, civic and religious community. Students are expected to conduct themselves in a Christian and courteous manner at all times showing respect for all persons and property. As a member of the Holy Spirit Catholic School community I will include and accept all students. Everyone's safety is everyone's responsibility. I will listen and be sensitive to the feelings of others.

Holy Spirit's goal is to have a productive learning environment. For this to be achieved, it is imperative that misbehavior be stopped at the earliest possible moment. If ordinarily effective methods of correcting student behavior do not produce the desired change, teachers will call parents for a conference. Parents are likewise encouraged to call teachers with concerns about their child's behavior or another student's unacceptable conduct toward their child.

School rules and regulations apply not just during school time, but at any time that Holy Spirit may be represented by its students – on field trips, at games, at social activities, etc. – whether or not a Holy Spirit activity. Although Holy Spirit cannot always supervise conduct away from the school grounds, Misconduct by students outside of the school may reflect negatively upon the reputation and/or integrity of the school. This misconduct may be considered grounds for disciplinary action by the school administrator in consultation with our parish priest.

⇒ The principal is the final recourse in all disciplinary situations ←

BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS

Any activity that endangers the health or safety of any person will not be allowed on Holy Spirit Catholic School property. Students and parents are reminded to always use the city crosswalks whenever crossing streets.

All BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS are enforced with the following two guidelines in mind:

- 1. Is this behavior kind and respectful of the rights of others?
- 2. Is this behavior safe and healthy for the student and for others?

PLAYGROUND EXPECTATIONS

In order that all students may enjoy safe and enjoyable play, the following policies and rules have been established. One rule governing all other rules is demonstrating RESPECT. This includes using respectful language.

Students must use playground equipment as it was meant to be used thus setting a good example. Pupils must remain on the playground within the fenced area in view of the <u>supervisor</u>. Neighbors' yards are out of bounds. No food is allowed on the playground. Bathroom needs should be taken care of before a student goes to the playground area. Students are not to enter the building without first receiving permission from the playground supervisor(s).

GENERAL PLAYGROUND RULES

- 1. No fighting or wrestling
- 2. Use appropriate language
- 3. No throwing or kicking rocks, mud, wood chips or snow
- 4. Stay on the playground unless given permission to retrieve a ball from outside the fenced area
- 5. Students may go to the restroom upon receiving permission
- 6. Observe bells/whistles and respond immediately by going to the appropriate place to line up by grade
- 7. Pushing and shoving are not permitted
- 8. No games are frozen-everyone can play, but you might have to wait for your turn

SPECIFIC PLAYGROUND RULES

Monkey bars - Single Bars - Dome Structure

- 1. Students should use a lock grip, one hand on the bars at all times
- 2. Standing on the bars is not permitted
- 3. Students are not to grasp other students
- 4. Hanging upside down will not be permitted

Slides

- 1. Students must slide in forward sitting position only
- 2. Interference with anyone going down the slide is not permitted

Jump Ropes

- 1. Use ropes for jumping only
- 2. Jump away from other games

Football

- 1. Tackling is never permitted. Use two handed touch, below the waist
- 2. Blocking is O.K. from the front only, with hands into the chest
- 3. Pushing, shoving and tripping is not permitted
- 4. Dog piling is not permitted

Winter Safety

- 1. Throwing or kicking snow or ice is not permitted
- 2. King of the Mountain is not permitted
- 3. Removal of icicles from roof lines, or handling them, is not permitted
- 4. Snow sculpture is encouraged, but should take place away from organized play areas.
- 5. Destroying other's snow structures is not permitted
- 6. Standing or jumping in puddles and under dripping water is not permitted

Students are responsible for any balls brought from home and must have permission from the playground aide to use them.

BREAKING THE RULES

The following are examples of behaviors that will result in disciplinary action:

- 1. Failure to follow directions respectfully the first time given
- 2. Deliberately causing mental stress to others
- 3. Cyber bullying
- 4. Failure to keep hands, feet and objects to oneself
- 5. Name calling, cursing, teasing or offensive gestures
- 6. Cheating or lying
- 7. Bullying, including but not limited to, verbal, visual or physical contact, threats or demands, and retaliation for reporting such behavior. Prohibited bullying includes sexual harassment.
- 8. Stealing, damaging or destroying school or personal property
- 9. Use, possession or sale of drugs, alcohol or tobacco products within view of the school grounds or at any school/parish function
- 10. Possession of dangerous instruments
- 11. Leaving the school grounds without permission or being in a restricted area
- 12. Defiance
- 13. Failure to adhere to the dress code
- 14. Failure to report for detention
- 15. Any other disruptive, dangerous or unacceptable behavior

HARASSMENT POLICY FOR STUDENTS IN CATHOLIC SCHOOLS

- Holy Spirit Catholic School is committed to providing a learning environment for students and staff that is free from harassment in any form. Harassment of any student by any other student, lay employee, religious or clergy is prohibited. The school will treat allegations of harassment seriously and will review and investigate such allegations in a prompt, confidential and thorough manner.
- A charge of harassment shall not, in and of itself, create the presumption of wrongdoing.
 However, substantiated acts of harassment will result in disciplinary action, up to and
 including expulsion. Students found to have filed false or frivolous charges may also be
 subject to disciplinary action.

3. Harassment occurs when an individual is subjected to treatment that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment. Harassment can occur any time during school or during school related activities. It includes, but is not limited to, any or all of the following:

Verbal Harassment

Derogatory comments and jokes; threatening words spoken to another person

Physical Harassment

Unwanted physical touching, contact, assault, deliberate impeding or blocking movements, or any intimidating interference with normal work or movement.

<u>Visual Harassment</u>

Derogatory, demeaning or inflammatory posters, cartoons, written words, drawings, gestures

Sexual Harassment

Students are protected against sexual harassment by diocesan policy and federal law. It includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. Specific examples of sexual harassment include but are not limited to:

- 1. Making unsolicited sexual advances and propositions;
- 2. Using sexually degrading words to describe an individual or an individual's body;
- 3. Displaying sexually suggestive objects or pictures;
- 4. Telling inappropriate or sexually related jokes;
- 5. Making reprisals, threats of reprisals or implied threats of reprisals following a negative response to sexual advances.
- 6. Harassment can result from a single incident or from a pattern of behaviors.

Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion. Staff whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including dismissal.

Third parties (for example, school volunteers, parents, school visitors, service contractors or others engaged in school business or organizations participating in cooperative work programs with the school and others not directly subject to

school control at inter-school and intra-school athletic competitions or other school events) whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the principal with the recommendation of the board. Individuals may also be referred to law enforcement officials. Depending on seriousness of the incident, the school may need to also report it to the police or other civil authorities.

REPORTING PROCEDURE

Any student, either directly or through his/her parent or legal guardian, who believes that he or she has been a target of harassment in school, on school property or while participating in a school-sanctioned curricular or extracurricular activity, should report the incident in writing to the school principal as soon as possible, preferably within three calendar days of the incident.

The school principal is responsible to investigate the allegation and will meet with the complainant within three school days unless other arrangements are made between the school principal and the complainant. In the event that the school principal is the one the student believes is responsible for the harassment or in some way involved in it, the report can be made to the parish priest. In all other cases, the incident should be reported to the principal who will make a decision concerning disciplinary action.

If the complainant is not satisfied with the principal's decision, the complainant may make an appeal to the parish priest within 5 calendar days. The priest will review the matter and make a decision. The decision of the priest will be final.

Every reasonable effort will be made to maintain confidentiality during the investigation. Substantiated acts of retaliation against a complainant or any witness who participates in an investigation will result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

It is the responsibility of Holy Spirit Catholic School to make all faculty, staff, students, and parents aware of this policy and the commitment of the school toward its strict enforcement.

CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE BEHAVIORS

DEFINITIONS

- 1. <u>Loss of Privileges</u>: Exclusion of a student from school privileges specified by the teacher and/or principal.
- 2. <u>Detention</u>: A temporary confinement of the student in a specified area for a significant amount of time, usually during recess, lunch or after school. During detention, the student is to complete homework as directed unless it is as a result of tardiness. The time of the detention will be determined by the grade of the student and the number of offenses. Generally, detentions will start with 5-

- minutes for K-2; 10-minutes for 3-5; 15-minutes for middle school. Detention is is progressive on repeated offenses. Generally, the more immediate the consequence, the greater the effectiveness.
- 3. <u>In-School Suspension (ISS)</u>: A temporary confinement of the student in a specified area during the school day, either a half day or a full day, during which time the student is to complete homework. An ISS student will be required to make up missed work during suspension or as homework.
 - a. 1st incident of ISS: Parents will be notified by telephone.
 - b. 2nd incident of ISS: (9 months or less after the first incident) Parents will be asked to come to the school for a conference.
- 4. <u>OUT-OF-SCHOOL SUSPENSION (OSS)</u>: A temporary dismissal of a student from school. It is a consequence of an action of a serious nature or imposed after other remedial measures have been employed without success. An OSS student will be required to make up missed work.
 - a. <u>1st incident of OSS</u>: Parents will be called to remove their child from school and will be asked to come to the school for a conference.
 - b. 2nd incident of OSS: (occurring 9 months or less after a previous incident of OSS): In addition to a parent conference, a letter will be sent to the parents suggesting that they withdraw their child from school at this time since a further incident will be cause for formal expulsion.
- 5. EXPULSION: The permanent dismissal of a student from school. It is used when:
 - All other efforts of motivation and counseling, including the above discussed in-school-suspension and out-of-school suspension, have failed, or
 - b. Attendant circumstances of crime, scandal, immorality or disruption constitute a threat to the physical or moral welfare of other persons.
- 6. <u>APPEAL</u>: If a child is expelled with a formal letter of expulsion, his/her parents may appeal the action to the school pastor.

EXAMPLES OF IMMEDIATE EXPULSION

The following are examples of misconduct that will result in immediate expulsion:

- 1. Assault causing or having the potential to cause serious bodily injury.
- 2. Possession of dangerous instruments, including but not limited to, firearms, knives or explosives.

3. Use, possession or sale of alcohol or any other legally controlled substance.

APPLYING CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE BEHAVIOR

Corporal punishment is not an acceptable form of punishment at Holy Spirit and is specifically forbidden by diocesan policy.

Whenever and wherever possible, teachers will enforce appropriate, natural consequences for any transgressions. For instance, if a student throws food in the lunchroom, a natural consequence would be to have that student clean the cafeteria. When an offense occurs, methods of correction will depend upon:

- the seriousness of the offense,
- the age of the student,
- the attitude of the student,
- the patterns of misconduct,
- the degree of cooperation exhibited and
- other extenuating circumstances.

The consequences of repeated offenses are progressive.

RESPECT

The good name, reputation and personal safety of each student, faculty, and staff member are vitally important. In order to protect students, employees, and the institution itself, each student is expected to treat the good name and reputation of other students, school employees and the school with dignity and respect and not engage in any activity or conduct, either on campus or off campus, that is in opposition to this policy and/or inconsistent with the Catholic Christian principles of the school, as determined by the school in its discretion. Any derogatory, slanderous, hostile, or threatening remarks or actions directed toward any of the above by a student will be seen as a violation of this policy and will be viewed as an extremely serious matter, whether it is done physically, verbally, or electronically through the use of a home or school computer or by remote access during school time or after hours. Some examples include, but are not limited to, text messages, blogging, images, pictures, etc. Any individual found to have made or participated with others in making any such remarks or actions will be subject to disciplinary action by the school, up to and including expulsion/dismissal.

DRESS CODE

Holy Spirit Catholic School chooses to instill in our students the virtue of modesty. Beginning in their formative years and guiding them as they grow to their teen years, we would appreciate your cooperation in choosing clothes that are attractive, yet modest and that adhere to the rules and guidelines of our dress code.

An important influence on the school's education environment is the manner in which students dress. Values and behaviors that may be promoted through personal attire and grooming include modesty, cleanliness, respect for self and respect for others. To encourage these values and behaviors, dress code policies have been established. Any clothing or grooming activity that may cause safety concerns or disruption to the learning environment is prohibited. The principal reserves the right to make definitive decisions concerning the appropriateness of any clothing or other item related to the school's dress code. If a student has a question related to a piece of clothing meeting the dress code, he/she should seek permission prior to wearing it. Should a student not be in full compliance with the dress code, the school may contact the parent to bring the necessary change of clothing for that student. Students will not be released from school on their own to change clothing. Students are required to follow specific dress requirements while representing Holy Spirit Catholic School in school related activities.

1. The appearance of the student will be neat, clean, and modest.

2. Grooming

- a. There will be no hairstyles that detract from or disturb the learning environment.
- b. Male students are to be clean-shaven.
- c. Hair color and design will be of natural color, modest, and not distracting. This includes real, attached, or artificial hair.
- 3. Clothing must be neat, *modest*, clean, in good repair, and be appropriate length and width.
 - a. Skirts and shorts can be no shorter than five inches above the knee.
 - b. No shorts can be worn from November 1 to March 31.
 - c. No shirts will be worn that are low cut, backless, or that expose the midriff. The shoulder must be covered with a continuous sleeve - no tank tops allowed.
 - d. No undergarments will be shown.
 - e. Pants/Jeans can not have tears or holes in them.
- 4. Gang related attire or clothing that advertises unhealthy habits, obscene, offensive or disrespectful attitudes will not be permitted. No words or symbols are to be worn across the seat of any student's clothing.

- 5. Excessive makeup or jewelry are not allowed. Tattoos (temporary or permanent) must be concealed. Piercings other than earrings must not be adorned with jewelry. This applies to boys and girls.
- 6. Hats and sunglasses may not be worn in the building.
- Students are expected to follow the directions of their teachers or other supervising adults with regard to weather for the appropriate clothing. All students will be encouraged to dress appropriately for the weather and outside conditions.
- 8. Students in grades TT 3rd grade must wear socks with their shoes in all types of weather as a safety precaution.
- 9. Students dress for special occasions such as Mass, Liturgical events and other specified events as determined by the administration. On these days students are required to wear a royal blue or white polo shirt or button front collared shirt that displays our school logo. Students are also required to wear uniform khaki or black pants or uniform khaki or black skirts or dress shorts no shorter than 5" above the knee. Only HSCS Spirit Wear sweatshirts will be allowed to be worn during Mass. Flannel shirts or coats will not be worn over the uniform shirt; however, a white or black long sleeve shirt can be worn under the polo. School uniforms are optional the rest of the week.

Violations of the school's dress code will result in disciplinary action.

ATTENDANCE

Holy Spirit Catholic School adheres to the Montana attendance and truancy policies (School Laws of Montana: Codes 20-5-102, 20-5-103, and 20-5-106). HSCS complies with the mandated pupil instruction days and has established a "10-day rule" governing attendance. All students are expected to be present and punctual for classes, assemblies, retreats, and liturgies throughout the school year. The continuity and the context of subject matter discussed in class is difficult to make up and frequently subsequent lessons become unnecessarily difficult for the student. Students who attend irregularly will be placed on probation, parents will be notified, and the terms of the probation will be discussed. It is difficult for faculty to assess student ability or grant credit to students who are absent beyond the norm. The attendance policy is designed to assist parents/guardians in helping their child recognize the importance of regular and prompt school attendance as it relates to school progress, and to carry out the policy.

ABSENCES

ABSENCE DEFINED

1. Students not present in class, school liturgy, assembly or retreat.

- 2. Students present at the beginning of the period, but leave a class without the teacher's permission.
- 3. Students are tardy if not in the classroom by 8:00 A.M.
- 4. A student will have a "Half-Day" absence if they check in after 9:30 A.M. or if they check out before 1:30 P.M.
- 5. A student will have a "Full-Day" absence if they check in after 9:30 A.M. and if they check out before 2:00 P.M.

ABSENCE CATEGORIES

Excused Absence, Unexcused Absence, School related Absences, and Medical Absence:

EXCUSED ABSENCE

An excused absence is any absence that the parent/guardian authorizes before, the day of, or the day following the day of the absence. Excused absences may include: illness, serious illness or death in the immediate family, scheduled medical or dental appointment, emergency situations approved by the Administration, requirements to satisfy the law, and pre-arranged absences requested by the parent and for which student work is made up in advance. Due to the importance of a student attending class each day to benefit from the full impact of the curriculum, we suggest that if at all possible appointments for non-emergency medical or dental services be scheduled during after-school hours. We realize that this is not possible at all times. When the child returns to school, a written excuse signed by the parent should be brought to the office stating the reason for the absence.

UNEXCUSED ABSENCES

An unexcused absence is defined as an absence of a student from school, school liturgy, or other school activities who has not been authorized by the parent/guardian or school personnel, or for unacceptable reasons. Examples of unexcused absences are:

- 1. Failure to sign out of the building during the school day.
- 2. Failure of the student's parent/guardian to clear an absence by phone before the start of the school day following the absence.
- 3. Unauthorized absence including a tardy beyond 15 minutes.
- 4. Leaving the classroom without the teacher's permission.
- 5. Skip Days (truancy)
- 6. Leaving school without prior notification to the attendance secretary by a parent/guardian, or administrator.

7. An out-of-school suspension or expulsion (with no credit).

An unexcused absence does not allow the student to make up work, and a zero is received for the work assigned that day.

SCHOOL-RELATED ABSENCES

Absenteeism that occurs as a result of student participation in a school activity (music, speech, drama, athletic events, field trips, etc.) Students will be responsible for all work missed. The following procedures will be followed prior to a school related absence:

- 1. The student will obtain a pre-arranged absence slip from the activity sponsor or coach.
- 2. The student will present the pre-arranged absence slip to all instructors prior to the absence, indicating the date of the absence and the associated activity.
- The teacher will inform the student of assignments and /or tests to be made up and the timeline for completion of make-up work. All assignments will be made up. Whenever possible the student should complete assignments before the absence.

ADDITIONAL ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES

Parents will not remove a student from the campus during the school day without reporting to the main office and signing the student out. Students are not allowed to leave the school premises during the school day without the permission of the office. Holy Spirit Catholic School is closed from the beginning until the end of the school day for students. This includes lunch and passing time between classes. If a student must leave the campus during the school day for outside appointments, prior permission from the student's parent must be received by the main office prior to the students leaving campus. A designated responsible adult must sign the student out of school requiring them to come to the office. Leaving campus outside of this guideline and without permission will be treated as a serious disciplinary matter.

Early dismissal for special reasons must be approved by the office at the beginning of the school day or by parent contact by phone. A violation will be considered as an unexcused absence. Only the Principal, or the Principal's designee when the Principal is out of the building, may give permission to a student to leave the campus during class hours. If an emergency arises, every attempt will be made to notify parents prior to dismissing the student.

FOR ALL ABSENCES

1. The parent/guardian is requested to notify the school office (761-5775) prior to 8:30 A.M. on the day of the initial absence and every day of continuous absence.

- After that time the attendance Secretary will contact the parent/guardian to confirm the reason for the absence.
- 2. Students must make up work missed during their absence. Refer to the section on "Make-up of Class Work, Homework, or Tests".
- 3. If a student is to be absent from school during a portion of any school day, the student must present a note from his/her parent/guardian (or have a parent call the attendance Secretary) to the school office before the school day begins.

ANTICIPATED ABSENCES

Whenever a student or parent/guardian has prior knowledge of a pending absence other than school related, an "Absence Approval slip" will allow the student to receive assignments in advance. An "Absence Approval Slip" will be given to the student's homeroom teacher by the student. Notification should be made as soon as possible, one week's notice preferred, to the Attendance Secretary.

TWENTY-DAY RULE

In the event that more than 20 absences occur during a school year, students may be denied a passing grade for the year's work. The Principal will arrange a conference with the parties involved to make a determination regarding course credit. The Principal or the Principal's designee may extend the number of allowable absences in consideration of verified medical excuses, school-related activities, or other emergencies which are unavoidable and acceptable to the Principal. For informational purposes parents may be notified when a student has accumulated 17 or more absences during a school year. Parents are encouraged to plan vacations during school holidays. A calendar is enclosed denoting dates when students are not in school. Extensions of the 20-day rule will be made on an individual basis with the approval of the Principal when requested by the student and parent/guardian. A request must be made by the parent/guardian in writing within one week of the student reaching the 21st absence or prior to the leave request that will exceed the 20-day rule.

TARDIES/EARLY EXITS

It is the responsibility of the parents to have their child at school on time and the responsibility of the student to be in class on time, prepared with necessary materials and ready to learn. Similarly it is the responsibility of the parents to see that their student completes the entire school day. We appreciate knowing in advance when a student will be late for class or depart from school early. Please remember, tardies/early exits are only excused for medical appointments, church, or school related activities. For activities, if a student exits the school earlier than the dismissal time asked by the supervisor, it will be recorded as a tardy/early exit, this tardy/early exit will be marked as unexcused for the quarter's tardies/early-exits.

Whenever students are late for class they are sent to the office for an admittance slip. Students are encouraged to check with their teacher if they know circumstances may keep them from arriving to class on time. Teachers will use discretion if the student is in the hallway talking with another teacher or staff member. To discourage students from being late to class, the following procedure is used. *The tardy/early-exit count starts over every 9-week period.*

The detention consequence for repeated offenses will be progressive.

1st tardy/early exit
 2nd tardy/early exit
 3rd tardy/early exit
 4th - 7th tardy/early exit
 8th or more tardies/early exits
 No consequence
 A <u>Tardy/Early Exit Notification</u> is emailed home
 1 to 15 minute lunch detention, depending on grade level
 time of lunch detention is progressive
 progressive after-school detentions starting at 30-minutes

Tardies/Early Exits that continue to occur will result in the Principal scheduling a Parent-Student Conference.

HEALTH & SAFETY

HEALTH

PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

Montana law requires that a student entering kindergarten have a physical examination. Students competing in school sponsored athletics must have a sports' physical before engaging in practice for any athletic season.

IMMUNIZATIONS

Montana immunization laws require that the school have a signed record of the day, month and year each child was immunized against measles, mumps, rubella, polio, diphtheria, tetanus and pertussis. Verification of an MMR booster must be in a student's file before (s)he enters 6th grade. Medical exemptions must be on file prior to the first day of school.

MEDICATION

If a student is required to take prescribed medication during school hours or during school-related activities, the parent must inform the principal and/or administrative assistant so that it becomes a matter of school record. The student is responsible for taking his/her own medication preferably before and after school if this does not conflict with the prescribed medication times. A medication information form must be filled out through the school office. All prescription medication and completed medication form must be checked in at the office immediately upon the student's arrival at school.

To protect your children as well as those who assist them with their medication, the

following guidelines will be followed:

PRESCRIPTION

To dispense prescription medication, Holy Spirit requires all parents of children who take medication at school and their children's physicians to sign an authorization. These forms are available at the school office or at your doctor's office.

NONPRESCRIPTION

A completed medication form must be submitted by parents in order for students to receive nonprescription medications. These forms are available in the school office or online.

ASSISTING WITH MEDICATIONS

In most cases, students will be assisted in taking their medications only by the principal, a secretary or teacher aide, all of whom have been trained in the proper procedures.

PRECAUTIONS

All medication is to be stored in the office. Ordinarily, if a student must take more than one tablet at a visit, the adult gives the child one tablet at a time. In addition, the adult will record the time, date and amount of each medication given to a student.

NO MEDICATIONS, PRESCRIPTION OR OTHERWISE, SHOULD BE KEPT BY THE STUDENT OR IN THE CLASSROOM.

The school does not assume responsibility for nonprescription medications or reactions to prescription medication brought to school by the student.

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES: FOLLOW STATE DOE/OPI LANGUAGE

ILLNESS

If a child is not feeling well prior to the start of school, please do not send your child to school (i.e. fever, vomiting, headache, cold/flu symptoms).

If a child becomes ill during the day, the teacher will send him/her to the office. The office contacts the parents. No child has permission to place the call.

COMMUNICABLE DISEASES

<u>AIDS/HIV</u>: Students enrolled or seeking enrollment in Holy Spirit who are identified as being HIV infected, or who have family members identified as being HIV infected, ordinarily shall be permitted to attend school in an unrestricted setting. For further information, please make an appointment to talk to the principal.

<u>Chicken Pox</u>: The child should stay home until all scabs are gone or until at least seven (7) days following the appearance of the last blisters.

<u>Colds</u>: The child should stay home during the acute stage (sneezing and running nose) even though the temperature is normal.

Cough: The child should remain home if the cough is persistent and until it has subsided.

<u>Head Lice</u>: The child will be excluded from school until the prescribed course of treatment has been completed and there are no nits remaining on any hair shaft.

<u>Impetigo</u>: State guidelines require that children be excluded from school until all lesions are completely healed or the child has been seen by a physician and has been using the prescribed medication for 24-hours.

<u>Measles</u>: The child should stay out of school seven (7) days from the onset of the rash. With the 3-day measles, the child should stay out for two (2) days after the rash has disappeared.

<u>Mumps:</u> Students with mumps should stay home until all swelling disappears — usually about nine (9) days after the distinctive symptoms.

<u>Pink Eye (Conjunctivitis)</u>: The child must be excluded from school until he/she has been taking antibiotics for 24-hours.

<u>Ringworm</u>: Infected children should remain at home until the proper medication has been used for 24-hours.

<u>Strep infections</u>: Student may return to school after 24-hours of treatment with physician-prescribed medications if the child feels well enough.

SCREENINGS

Annual dental, vision, hearing and/or scoliosis screenings may be provided. These screenings do not constitute a thorough examination and should not be viewed as such. If you have any questions with regard to the screenings, please consult your own health care provider.

SAFETY

- All but the southeast alley door will be kept locked during school hours to better monitor who enters the school building.
- Parents are always encouraged and welcome at Holy Spirit Catholic School. Appointments should be made to see a teacher, counselor, and administrator or to visit a student's class by calling the main office.
- All visitors must report to the main office before proceeding to a classroom.
- Guests of students will not be allowed to accompany them to class without administrative or faculty permission, which must be secured a minimum of one school day in advance.
- Trespassers who do not have legitimate business in any area of the school will be requested to leave the premises.

ABUSE REPORTS

Holy Spirit complies with Montana state law requiring that any child abuse or any suspected child abuse be reported to the Department of Human Services.

EMERGENCIES

STUDENT INFORMATION

An emergency card is kept on file for each child with information supplied and updated by parents at the time of final registration.

PROCEDURES

<u>Fire and Lockdown Drills</u>: At the beginning of the school term, students are instructed in fire drill and lockdown procedures. Emergency drills are held eight times per year in accordance with Section 20-1-402 of the Revised Codes of Montana.

<u>Disaster</u>: In case of an emergency that necessitates evacuating students from the building (e.g., fire, boiler breakdown, etc.), students from Holy Spirit will be escorted to the Holy Family Church adjacent to the school or the Ursuline Retreat Centre at 2300 Central Avenue.

<u>Weather Closing</u>: In accordance with diocesan policy, our school will close when public schools do for weather or natural disaster related occurrences. Please listen to your local radio stations for announcements. In Great Falls such school closures are rare.

NUT ALLERGIES

We have students in our school who have life threatening allergies to peanuts or related tree nuts. Due to the nature of these allergies and the many undetectable ways in which

they can be communicated in a school setting, our school cannot guarantee a 100 percent allergen-free environment. Please ask your children's teachers how you can help to provide a more safe environment for these students.

PLAYGROUND SUPERVISION

BEFORE AND AFTER SCHOOL

There is no playground supervision until 7:45 A.M.; therefore for safety considerations students are not allowed on school grounds prior to that time. An appointment should be made with a teacher prior to a student entering the building before 7:55 A.M. Students must promptly leave school property after dismissal unless directly supervised by a teacher or coach.

Students 12 yrs.-of-age and younger may be at school prior to 7:45 A.M. and after 3:15 P.M. if registered to and under the direct supervision of our extended care staff. Parents will then be charged for the services of the Extended Care Program. Your attention to school hours and the desire to maintain a safe school environment is greatly appreciated.

DURING SCHOOL

From the time students arrive at school until they leave, they are under the care and supervision of the staff. Therefore, every staff member should receive the same obedience and respect that is due a parent. Students are not permitted to leave the playground during noon recess. While on the grounds, students may be only in those areas where there is adult supervision. See the Discipline Section of this handbook for other playground rules.

TRAFFIC

PROHIBITED AREAS

No vehicles should park on the playground or in the alley. No vehicles should drive on the playground or in the alley.

DROPPING OFF AND PICKING UP STUDENTS

For the safety of students, Holy Spirit asks that parents exercise caution when dropping off or picking up children.

PLEASE DO NOT BLOCK OUR NEIGHBOR'S DRIVEWAYS or park in the school bus zone.

AWARDS

<u>Academic Excellence:</u> The middle school student(s) who achieve(s) the highest cumulative grade point average for the current school year earn this award.

Boland Award for Academic Improvement: This is given to one student from each of 6th,

7th and 8th grades. It is not only for increased grade point average, but also includes growth in study habits and self-discipline.

<u>Christian Living Award</u>: One student each in grades 6, 7 and 8 who models for others community, faith, hope, reconciliation, courage, service, justice and love earns this award.

Honor Roll:

- Honors: Any middle school student who achieves a cumulative grade point average of $3.000 \le gpa < 4.000$ at the end of any quarter merits honors.
- High Honors: Any middle school student who achieves a cumulative grade point average of gpa = 4.000 the end of any quarter merits high honors.
- Grade point averages are computed by assigning 4 points for an A, 3 points for a
 B, and 2 points for a C. The GPA is calculated on a weighted average of all the
 students enrolled classes. The weight is determined by the number of periods per
 week a student has each class. Any student receiving a D or an F grade in any
 subject will not qualify for the honor roll.

<u>Perfect Attendance</u>: This award is given to children in grades K-8 who have no absences and no more than two tardies/early exits for the school year.

<u>Presidential Education Awards</u>: These awards are presented at the end of 5th and 8th grades. The criteria include report card grades and achievement test scores for the three years prior to receiving the award.

<u>Presidential Physical Fitness</u>: The President's Council on Physical Fitness presents awards to students who achieve a challenging level of physical fitness. Students are measured in five areas of fitness. Those who achieve at the 50th percentile in all five areas are awarded the National Physical Fitness Award.

<u>Alan Gallegos Awards</u>: are presented to the 8th grade boy and girl who have continually striven to improve themselves both academically and in sports activities. These students have earned the respect of the faculty & student body by their leadership, loyalty, good citizenship and integrity. The personal awareness and sensitivity of these students toward classmates and team members is recognized and appreciated.

<u>Sam Rapkoch Discovery Award</u>: This award is presented to Holy Spirit 7th graders who have shown their determination to learn through continued academic efforts, creativity, sportsmanship and Christian living.

<u>Service Award</u>: This is awarded to an 8th grade student who has served faithfully and willingly.

<u>Jim and Kay Biscup Learning Scholarship Award</u>: This is awarded to an 8th grade student who embodies the ideals that the Biscups held dear in Science and the Humanities.

MIDDLE SCHOOL

FELLOWSHIP DAY

In September, our middle school students participate in activities that encourage bonding and year-long fellowship.

SKI TRIPS

As part of their physical education curriculum, middle school students learn downhill skiing at Showdown Ski Area. A required fee covers the cost of transportation, lift tickets, equipment rental and lessons. A non-refundable transportation fee will be charged to all parents to cover the cost of leasing chartered busses. Due to disciplinary or academic reasons, students may miss the opportunity to participate in skiing. If a student fails to make the ski trip, the ski fee will be refunded; however, the chartered bus fee is non-refundable.

Students who do not make the ski trip will be expected to be in school and will receive an alternative assignment to complete their class requirement.

STUDENT COUNCIL

The Student Council consists of four members from each grade level of the middle school. These members are chosen by classmates. Members from 8th grade are assigned officer positions. A faculty member supervises the council activities. Their activities consist of planning and carrying out service projects and middle school social activities.

SOCIAL EVENTS

Middle school students have several social events per year. These events, which last for two to three hours, are chaperoned by parent volunteers and/or school staff. All middle school parents are asked to chaperone at least one event per year. The cost of each event varies. Refreshments are usually available.

LOSS OF PRIVILEGES

Students in 6th-8th grade have the opportunity to participate in many enjoyable activities. These are offered to enhance our students' school related experiences. These are privileges that must be earned throughout the year by exhibiting good behavior and study skills. Students who don't meet their teacher's expectations may lose any or all of these privileges.

STUDENT PROPERTY

PERSONAL ITEMS

In accordance with the school's mission to provide a positive, productive learning and

working environment, free from unnecessary interruptions and distractions, the use or possession of cellular phones, pagers, handheld electronic games, and personal music devices and other similar media devices are prohibited during the school day. Unauthorized possession or use of such devices is grounds for immediate confiscation by school officials or classroom teachers.

Such items if found will be confiscated and retained by the classroom teacher until such time they are turned over to the office. On the first violation the device will be returned directly to the student's parent or guardian upon their request. On the second violation the school will retain the device for a period of two weeks at which time the device will be returned to the student's parent. Following the second confiscation, if the student chooses to bring their device to school, it must be stored in the school office during the school day; the student will check it in at the start of the day and pick it up at the end of the day. Further violation(s) of this policy may result in the confiscation of the device for the remainder of the school year. Failure to turn over an unauthorized device to school officials and /or classroom teachers upon request, may result in disciplinary consequences up to and including dismissal/expulsion.

HSCS will not accept responsibility for lost or stolen equipment of this nature. Every personal item brought to school should be clearly marked with the student's name.

SEARCH AND SEIZURE

In the interest of promoting student safety and attempting to ensure that schools are safe and alcohol and drug free, school administration may from time to time conduct reasonable searches of school property and equipment. School authorities may also search the student and/or student's personal effects in the student's possession when there is reasonable suspicion that the search will produce evidence the particular student has violated or is violating the law or the school's conduct rules. If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is in violation of school policy and/or civil law, such evidence may be seized and impounded by the school administration. Parents will be notified if law enforcement is involved.

BICYCLES

It is not safe to ride bicycles on the playground during school time. Upon reaching the edge of the school yard, children must walk their bikes to the racks provided for them. Bikes must be locked and kept in the proper place while children are in class. The school will not assume responsibility for bikes that are stolen or damaged.

LOST AND FOUND

Lost and found articles ordinarily will be held by the school for one month. They will be displayed periodically for student and parent viewing. If unclaimed, they may be sent to a charity.

BRINGING MONEY TO SCHOOL

Any money sent with your child should be sealed in an envelope labeled with the child's name and grade and an explanation of what the money is for. Large sums of money should not be brought to school. If it is necessary to do so, the money should be carried to the office for safekeeping.

SCHOOL PROPERTY

Students are to care for school property in a respectful manner. Students who deface or damage school property or the property of others will make financial restitution. If library books are not returned, students will be assessed an amount equal to the value of the book or its replacement, whichever is greater, as determined by the principal. Students will be expected to show respect for persons and property at all times. No running, pushing or shoving can be tolerated, as it may become an occasion for serious injury. Shouting or loud talking should be avoided. Out of consideration for all members of the school community, students are expected to keep the building, its furnishing, the fields, green areas and parking lots in clean and orderly condition. Trash is to be disposed of in containers provided. Students' desks and lockers are school property and remain under the control and jurisdiction of the school even when assigned to an individual student. Students are fully responsible for the security and contents of their assigned desk and locker. Searches of desks and lockers may be conducted on a random basis throughout the school or individually at any time the school, in its discretion, believes there is reasonable cause that they contain articles or materials prohibited by school policy, whether or not a student is present. The parent will be notified if any prohibited items are found in the student's desk or locker. The parent will also be notified if law enforcement is involved.

LOCKERS AND DESKS

Lockers and desks are the property of Holy Spirit Catholic School and may be opened and searched by school officials whenever there is reasonable cause to do so.

SECTION TWO

PARENTS

COMMITMENT

Holy Spirit relies on the consistent support of parents to carry out its mission of providing strong academic programs and a community of faith. This partnership between parents and school assures the education of children in academic subjects, in religious instruction and in moral values. Therefore, because all students can benefit when each parent is actively involved in the student's education, we ask parents to make the following

commitments:

- DISCIPLINE: Support the school's disciplinary measures.
- HOMEWORK: Read to or with your child and review homework each day.
- SERVICE: Participate in at least two areas of service to the school as indicated on your Family Commitment sheet.
- FUNDRAISING: Participate in all fundraising efforts with work or donations. The Development Director will inform students, teachers, parents, sponsors and coaches about any school-wide fundraising project.
- TUITION: Pay assigned tuition in a timely manner either directly to the office prior to the school year beginning or as specified by the financial contract made with P.A.R.M.

Let's work together to make your child's educational experience at Holy Spirit the best it can be.

NON-CUSTODIAL PARENT RIGHTS

- The custodial parent has the responsibility to provide the school administration with all
 official court orders which affect the wellbeing of the student when she/he is in the care
 of the school. Non-custodial parents will not be permitted to use the school for child
 visitation.
- The school will not refuse the request of the non-custodial parent who requests to pick up a child at the end of the school day unless there is a court order that states otherwise. By the provisions of the Buckley Amendment with respect to the rights of the non-custodial parent, in the absence of a court order to the contrary, the school will provide the non-custodial parent with access to the academic records and to other school-related information regarding the child. It is the responsibility of the custodial parent to provide the school with an official copy of that court order.

ORGANIZATIONS

SCHOOL BOARD

The membership of the parish school board will consist of 10 to 12 members in addition to the pastor and principal. Members are elected for a three-year term, with an option to serve an additional term. The terms of office shall commence with the May meeting each spring following elections and be staggered so that each year several terms of office will expire. One school board member shall be responsible for communicating with the parish council. School board meetings are held monthly. Meetings dates will be announced each month. School board members' names are published on the school's website,

holyspiritgf.org/school.

<u>Open meetings</u>. All meetings are open to parents and other interested parties. If a person wishes to have a topic addressed at a meeting, it should be placed on the agenda by calling the principal or the chairman of the school board no later than on Monday of the week before the meeting.

<u>Responsibilities</u>. The school board is responsible for the following functions:

- Planning establishing a mission statement and a strategic plan.
- Policy formulation giving general direction for administrative action.
- Finances developing plans and means to finance educational programs, which includes setting tuition, negotiating subsidies and developing the annual budget.
- Selection/appointment of the principal participating according to the school's constitution and the policies of the diocese in determining who serves as principal.
- Development understanding the school's vision and mission and actively supporting the functions and endeavors of the development office.
- Evaluation determining whether goals and plans are being met, not evaluating individual staff members, administrators or students, except the principal's relationship with the board, and determining the board's own effectiveness.

<u>Decision-making</u>. Decisions are made by consensus, which means that all board members agree to support the decision that appears to be the best, under the present circumstances, for the greatest number of people.

HOME AND SCHOOL ASSOCIATION

Holy Spirit's Home and School Association has these objectives:

- 1. To help parents and teachers acquire a profound appreciation of the ideals of Catholic education;
- To promote a clearer understanding of the mutual educational responsibilities of the parents and teachers, thus providing for better communication between home and school:
- 3. To cooperate with the pastors and faculty for the betterment of school, financially and educationally.

Four officers and five committee chairpersons are elected each year to serve as leaders in attaining the above objectives. Executive officers are the president, president-elect, secretary and treasurer. The five committee chairpersons represent the following committees: Family Resources, Ways and Means, Extra-curricular, Curriculum and Hospitality. Officers and chairpersons also provide periodic family-oriented programs with social activities, teacher-parent information sessions and student activities. The names of association officers are published on the school's website, holyspiritgf.org/school.

BOOSTER CLUB

The Booster Club is essential to the athletic program. All middle school families that have students who participate in any athletic program are members of the Booster Club and are required to pay a participation fee. Officers' names are published on the school's website, holyspiritgf.org/school.

FAMILY MENTORING PROGRAM

The Family Mentoring Program helps new families become better acquainted with the school with the aid of families that are "old hands." Families are matched up according to children's grades and activities. If you are interested in this program, contact the school office.

SERVICE AT SCHOOL

Service is an integral part of parochial school involvement. Holy Spirit sincerely welcomes your service and your special talents and expertise appropriate to the enrichment of the spiritual and academic environment. We urge your active participation in school programs and activities. Each volunteer is directly responsible to a school staff person and will receive instruction regarding duties, school policies, emergency procedures, reporting discipline problems and how to get assistance. Each volunteer is a member of the school staff but is never a spokesperson or an employee of the school.

SECTION THREE

COMMUNICATIONS

PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES

Conferences are a valuable means of communication, providing an opportunity to get acquainted, share common problems, and understand one another better. Notices will be sent home with the students. Evening appointments or alternate dates may be requested by parents and approved by the instructors.

Pre-kindergarten has mid-year and end-of-the-year conferences. Middle school conferences are scheduled after mid-term of the 1st quarter and throughout the year as needed. Remaining grades have conferences after the first quarter. Parents and teachers are encouraged to arrange informal conferences as the need arises during the school year.

Parents wishing to discuss student performance, homework assignments, etc., may not interrupt a teacher while she/he is directly involved with students. Teachers want to give

full attention to parents' concerns; for this reason, it is best to make an appointment so these discussions can receive the attention they deserve.

PROGRESS REPORTS AND GRADES

Kindergarten students are issued grade reports at the 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarters. Grades 1-8 receive report cards at the end of each quarter. Progress reports are issued at each mid-term for grades 3-5. A sample of the report card is available upon request.

Letter grades are based upon these floor percentages:

A+ = 100%	A = 93%	A- = 92%
B+ = 91%	B = 84%	B- = 83%
C+ = 82%	C = 75%	C- = 74%
D+ = 73%	D = 66%	D- = 65%
F = 0%		

PROBLEM SOLVING

The grapevine, the rumor mill and gossip are exceptionally risky methods of communication and conflict resolution. At best, they are unreliable. At worst, they are damaging to the individuals or groups or programs involved.

STEPS TO TAKE

- 1. If you are troubled by someone or something, your first step is to speak to that person or the person most closely related to the problem (perhaps this is a teacher).
- 2. If you feel the problem is not resolved, speak to the other individual again. Perhaps that person sincerely believes the difficulty has been resolved and does not realize that you don't see it the same way.
- 3. If you still don't feel satisfied after a second attempt to resolve the difficulty, go a step higher (in the case of the school, this would be the principal) and restate your concern, asking for assistance. In the event you do not feel satisfied with the resolution of the problem at this level, make a second attempt.
- 4. If it finally becomes necessary to take your concern to the next level, please contact Fr. Doug Krings.

At any level, it is wise to ask the person whom you're approaching: "Could I call you (see you) again if I haven't heard back by (a given date)?" In this way, you will know how soon to hear of a resolution to the problem. And you will know it is reasonable to call

the person again if the process has broken down.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

If any student or student's parents/ guardian believes that a his/her rights have been deprived or violated the following procedure should be followed in all cases other than expulsion or Title IX matters.

- The teacher or other school employee shall be informed of the complaint. A
 meeting should promptly be scheduled with the student or parents and the school
 employee against whose action the complaint is leveled to resolve the situation.
 The complainant or the employee may request that a member of the
 administrative staff be present.
- 2. If no satisfactory resolution is reached, a written request for review of the matter may be presented to the school principal. This written request for review shall specifically state the nature of the complaint, identify the right that is believed to have been violated or deprived, and the specific relief sought. The principal will review the written request and, within ten (10) days, notify the person lodging the complaint of the action to be taken to alleviate the grievance or inform them that no basis got for the complaint has been determined.
- 3. If, after the above procedures have been exhausted and no satisfactory resolution has been rendered, the person lodging the complaint may request, in writing, within ten (10) days that the parish priest review the matter. This written request shall state the nature of the complaint, the right believed to have been violated or deprived, the points of disagreement with the outcome of the first two steps of this procedure and the specific relief sought. The parish priest or his designee, shall review the facts of the matter and within ten (10) days informing the complainant of the administration's final action with regard to the complaint. The priest's decision on the matter is final.

ELECTRONIC WEDNESDAY ENVELOPES

Each week parents who provide an email address will receive an email from the principal's office containing a link to our School Management System, which will have a posting of our Wednesday Envelope. This electronic envelope contains notes, calendars, the monthly newsletter, etc. to keep parents informed of school activities. A hard copy of the same information will be made available to parents upon request. Placing much of our correspondence online saves paper and expense. Please go to http://Renweb.com and choose the Wednesday Envelope.

Materials must be submitted to the principal's office by 12:00 P.M. on Tuesday for inclusion within that week's publication.

SECTION FOUR

FINANCE

TUITION

The actual cost to educate a child in grades K-8 during the 2015-16 school year was \$6,500.00. Our parish contributes generously toward supporting our school which does help to offset the cost of education. As a result, we are able to reduce the rate for parishioners. As we are a "Cost-Based; Needs Based" program, scholarship assistance is available through FACTS for families whose income can't support the minimum rate. Your financial support enables us to serve our school community with our wonderful spirit led mission. We ask that you prayerfully consider paying this amount. If this isn't possible we ask that you pay somewhere between this and the minimum rate which is noted in the tuition schedule. A copy of the tuition schedule may be obtained in the school office or viewed on our school's website www.holyspiritgfschool.org.

SCHOLARSHIPS

Families needing assistance beyond tuition indexing are encouraged to apply for a scholarship. Applications are reviewed by FACTS Tuition Management. You may apply online, http://factsmgt.com.

PAYMENT OF TUITION

Families may choose to pay in full at final registration or in monthly installments. The monthly installment program is made possible through P.A.R.M., a local agency. Parents interested in participating in this program are required to complete a payment contract at the time of final registration. There is a small monthly fee for installment payment processing. Options for payment include a check, bank withdrawal or credit card.

OVERDUE TUITION PAYMENTS

Monthly tuition payments are due no later than the 10th of the following month. For example, September's tuition payment is considered late if it is paid later than October IO. A late fee may be assessed for each late tuition payment. Families that are more than 90 days in arrears with their tuition may be asked to leave the school.

TUITION REFUND

A family transferring children to a school out of Cascade County may receive a tuition refund for each remaining full quarter of the school year. If a student attends any portion of a quarter, tuition for the entire quarter is due and owing.

A family transferring children to a school within Cascade County may receive a tuition

refund for any remaining full semester of the school year. If a student attends any portion of a semester, tuition for the entire semester is non-refundable.

REGISTRATION PROCEDURES AND FEES

REGISTRATION COMPLETION

Current and new families pre-register for the following school year in February. Information for completion of registration will be out in March. New families must supply immunization records, all sacramental records (if Catholic) and a birth certificate for each child. Fees and arrangements for tuition payments are due at this time.

REGISTRATION FEE

The registration fee is paid at the time of pre-registration in the spring and is non-refundable. The fee schedule is as follows:

K-8	\$145
Pre-K, 5-day	\$100
Pre-K, 3-day	
Tiny Tots	

OTHER FEES

LUNCH (Students may bring their own cold lunches or purchase hot lunches)

LUNCH (Students may bring their own cold function
Student lunch \$3.00
Milk only \$0.50
Adult lunch \$3.75
BUS FEE (monthly fee)
One way per child \$30.00
To and from school per child \$60.00
Two or more children one way\$40.00
Two or more children both ways\$80.00
ATHI FTICS

ATHLETICS

Athletic fee	\$50.00	per child
Fifth grade fee	\$25.00	

Additional fee for football. \$35.00

ACTIVITY PASS (good for home games only)

Per person \$20.00 per year

Other

Clothing: Please see the Extra-curricular Handbook

SAM RAPKOCH EMERGENCY FUND: The family of the late Sam Rapkoch, a former Holy Spirit student, has established an emergency fund for use by Holy Spirit families. If your child has a need that you cannot afford for such items as eyeglasses, shoes for athletic participation, etc., please contact the child's teacher or the principal.

HOLY SPIRIT ENDOWMENT TRUST: The Endowment Trust was established in 1985 to secure the future of the newly consolidated school. Gifts to the endowment may be given in many different ways. Stocks, bonds, mutual funds, cash, property, bequests in wills and life insurance all have tax advantages for the donor as well as providing Holy Spirit a bright and secure future. The Endowment Trust has a diversified portfolio with portions being invested through a local investment firm as well as the Catholic Diocese of Great Falls-Billings. For more information, please contact one of the trustees, the principal or the director of development.

SECTION FIVE GENERAL

HOT LUNCH PROGRAM

The Holy Spirit Food Service prepares hot lunch meals each full school day. A menu is supplied each month. Keep it available so your child can decide whether (s)he would like to purchase lunch on a given day.

Offer vs. Serve: At each lunch, foods from the five food groups are served: 1) a main dish containing a protein source (usually meat), 2) vegetable, 3) fruit, 4) bread and 5) milk. Grades TT-8 are offered all five foods. Grades TT-3 must choose foods that represent servings of at least 4 food groups. They may select four or all five. We will not serve "seconds" of any food unless there is something we cannot reuse at a later date. We also do not allow "seconds" unless the student has eaten all on their tray

<u>Purchasing groups of lunches</u>: Blocks of lunches may be purchased any time. Lunch count and financial balance will be kept on our SIS. Students ordinarily should not charge their meals; however, exceptions are made when a child has not brought a lunch and has no

money or lunch purchases left. Any lunch money remaining at the end of the school year will roll over into the following year. or returned if the family does not return to Holy Spirit Catholic School. Please make the lunch money checks out to "Holy Spirit School."

Milk: Individual milk cartons can be purchased for cold lunch at 50 cents each.

A record of lunch purchases used and lunches remaining is kept on RenWeb. When a student is low in lunch money, a notice is emailed to the parents on RenWeb. If a family needs an extra day or two to get paid up we request that they call the school.

<u>Good Manners</u>: Students are expected to conduct themselves during lunch as they would at home mealtime, that is, moderate conversation, appropriate table behavior and remaining at the table until dismissed.

FOOD MAY NOT BE TAKEN FROM THE LUNCHROOM WITHOUT PERMISSION

Parents may eat with their children. Please call the office before 9:00 A.M. if you would like to eat with your child. This allows the kitchen the opportunity to prepare an extra meal.

How much are students required to eat? The staff believes that children should eat most, if not all, of their meals for these reasons:

- 1. If a child is eating cold lunch, we assume parents are aware of what is in the lunch bag and would prefer that their child eat what has been provided.
- Students taking hot lunch have the opportunity to read the menu included monthly in the Wednesday Envelope and as posted on Schoolspeak. With prior knowledge of the menu, we assume that parents would either send them with cold lunch or would expect them to eat the hot lunch provided.

Students are not required to eat everything — UNLESS they plan to receive a second helping.

Do students have enough time to eat? Students ordinarily should have ample time to eat, if they refrain from visiting and other distracting behaviors until they go out to the playground. Middle school students are told that they may leave the lunchroom at 12:40 P.M.

GUARDIAN OF ANGELS – EXTENDED CARE PROGRAM

Guardian of Angels Extended Care is a program that provides before, during and after school care for any student between the ages of 3 and 12, who is registered at Holy Spirit Catholic School. Our day care provides a safe environment, which will foster growth for all your child's needs: physical, emotional, social, nutritional and cognitive development. The daily schedule will meet these needs by providing time for outside or gym time; thought provoking, creative activities; free choice time; and nutritious snacks by caring trained staff. Extended Care keeps our adult/child ratio of 1-adult to every 8-children if we have children three year of age. Otherwise, our ratio is kept at 1-adult for every 10-children over three years of age.

Guardian of Angels Extended Care's rate for one child is \$4.50 per hour or a flat fee of \$33.00 per day. If you have more than one child using the daycare, the rate per child would be \$4.50 A once a year \$20.00 supply fee is assessed at the start of service. This supply fee covers snacks and materials used throughout the year. Monthly bills are sent out the first week of the month for the previous month's service. Bills are required to be paid by the 10th of each month. Guardian of Angels is open for business at 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. A late fee will be assessed for late pickups. Our daycare follows the school calendar fairly closely as to provide families with convenient day care service.

We try very hard to stay in touch with your child's classroom teacher as to follow his/her curriculum and to reinforce the academics being taught. In addition, Extended Care is happy to offer cooking, singing and dancing along with new adventures throughout the school year to keep the children excited about coming to daycare.

Guardian of Angels and Holy Spirit Catholic School look forward to providing you and your child with a safe, structured, academic and convenient service that is housed in the same building. No more picking up after school and chauffeuring your child to the next child provider

INTERNET USE CONDUCT POLICY

ACCEPTABLE USE OF ELECTRONIC NETWORKS

All use of electronic networks shall be consistent with promoting educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication. These procedures do not attempt to state all required or prescribed behavior by users, however, some specific examples are provided. The failure of any user to follow these procedures will result in the loss of privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Acceptable Use - Access to the school's electronic networks must be

- a. for the purpose of education or research and consistent with educational objectives; or
- b. for legitimate business use.
- 2. Privileges The use of the school's electronic networks is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use will result in a cancellation of those privileges. The building principal will make all decisions regarding whether or not a user has violated these procedures and may deny, revoke, or suspend access at any time. The principal's decision is final.
- 3. Unacceptable Use The user is responsible for his/her actions and activities involving the network. Some examples of unacceptable uses are:
 - Using the network for any illegal activity, including violation of copyright or other contracts, or transmitting any material in violation of any U. S. or state law;
 - b. Unauthorized downloading of software;
 - c. Downloading copyrighted material for other than personal use;
 - d. Using the network for private financial or commercial gain;
 - e. Wastefully using resources, such as file space;
 - f. Hacking or gaining unauthorized access to files, resources, or entities;
 - g. Invading the privacy of individuals, which includes the unauthorized disclosure, dissemination, and use of information of a personal nature about anyone;
 - h. Using another user's account or password;
 - Posting material authorized or created by another, without his/her consent;
 - j. Posting anonymous messages;
 - k. Using the network for commercial or private advertising;
 - Accessing, submitting, posting, publishing, or displaying any defamatory, inaccurate, abusive, obscene, profane, sexually oriented, threatening, racially offensive, harassing or illegal material; and
 - m. Using the network while access privileges are suspended or revoked.
- 4. Network Etiquette The user is expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network etiquette. These include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Be polite. Do not become abusive in messages to others.
 - b. Use appropriate language. Do not swear or use vulgarities or any other inappropriate language.
 - c. Do not reveal personal information, including the addresses or telephone numbers, of students or colleagues.
 - d. Recognize that electronic mail (e-mail) is not private. People who operate the system have access to all mail. Messages relating to or in support of illegal activities may be reported to the authorities.
- 5. Do not use the network in any way that would disrupt its use by other uses.
- 6. Consider all communications and information accessible via the network to be private property.

- 7. No Warranties The school makes no warranties of any kind, whether expressed or implied, for the service it is providing. The school will not be responsible for any damages the user suffers. This includes loss of data resulting from delays, non-deliveries, missed deliveries, or service interruptions caused by its negligence or the user's errors or omissions. Use of any information obtained via the Internet is at the user's own risk. The school specifically denies any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through its services.
- 8. Indemnification The user agrees to indemnify the school for any loss, costs, or damages, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred by the school, relating to or arising out of any violation of these procedures.
- 9. Security Network security is a high priority. If the user can identify a security problem on the Internet, the user must notify the building principal. Do not demonstrate the problem to other users. Keep your account and password confidential. Do not use another individual's account without written permission from that individual. Attempts to log on to the Internet as a system administrator will result in cancellation of user privileges. Any user identified as a security risk may be denied access to the network.
- 10. Vandalism Vandalism will result in cancellation of privileges and other disciplinary action. Vandalism is defined as any malicious attempt to harm or destroy data of another user, the Internet, or any other network. This includes, but is not limited to, the uploading or creation of computer viruses.
- 11. Telephone Charges The school assumes no responsibility for any unauthorized charges or fees, including telephone charges, long-distance charges, per-minute surcharges, and/or equipment or line costs.
- 12. Copyright Web Publishing Rules Copyright law prohibits the republishing of text or graphics found on the Web or file server, without explicit written permission.
 - a. For each republication (on a Web site or file server) of a graphic or text file that was produced externally, there must be a notice at the bottom of the page crediting the original producer and noting how and when permission was granted. If possible, the notice should also include the Web address of the original source.
 - b. Students and staff engaged in producing Web pages must provide library media specialists with e-mail or hard copy permissions before the Web pages are published. Printed evidence of the statute of "public domain" documents must be provided.
 - c. The absence of a copyright notice may not be interpreted as permission to copy the materials. Only the copyright owner may provide the permission. The manager of the Website displaying the material may not be considered a source of permission.
 - d. The "fair use" rules governing student reports in classrooms are less stringent and permit limited use of graphics and text.
 - e. Student work may only be published if there is written permission from both the parent/guardian and the student.

INTERNET SAFETY

- Internet access is limited to only those "acceptable uses" as detailed in these
 procedures. Internet safety is almost assured if users will not engage in
 "unacceptable uses", as detailed in these procedures, and will otherwise follow
 these procedures.
- Staff members shall supervise students while students are using. Internet access, to ensure that the students abide by the terms and conditions for Internet access, as contained in these procedures.
- 3. Each school computer with Internet access has a filtering device that blocks entry to visual depictions that are (1) obscene; (2) pornographic; or (3) harmful or inappropriate for students, as defined by the children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA)
- 4. The building principals shall monitor student Internet access.
- 5. Legal Reference: Children's Internet Protection Act, P.L. 106-554 20 U.S.C. § 6801, et seq. 47 U.S.C.. § 254(h) and (1)

STUDENTS

ACCESS TO ELECTRONIC INFORMATION, SERVICES, AND NETWORKS

GENERAL

Internet access and interconnected computer systems are available to the students and faculty. Electronic networks, including the Internet are a part of the instructional program in order to promote educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication. In order for the school to be able to continue to make its computer network and Internet access available, all students must take responsibility for appropriate and lawful use of this access. Students utilizing school-provided Internet access are responsible for good behavior online. The same general rules for behavior apply to students' use of school-provided computer systems. Students must understand that one student's misuse of the network and Internet access may jeopardize the ability of all students to enjoy such access. While the teachers and other staff will make reasonable efforts to supervise use of network and Internet access, they must have student cooperation in exercising and promoting responsible use of this access.

CURRICULUM

The use of the school's electronic networks shall be consistent with the curriculum adopted by the school as well as the varied instructional needs, learning styles, abilities, and developmental levels of the student and shall comply with the selection criteria for instructional material and library-media center materials. Staff members may, consistent with the school's educational goals, use the Internet throughout the curriculum. The school's electronic network is part of the curriculum and is not a public form for general use.

ACCEPTABLE USES

- 1. Educational Purposes Only: All use of the school's electronic network must be
 - a. in support of education and/or research, and be in furtherance of the school's stated educational goals or
 - b. for a legitimate school business purpose. Use is a privilege, not a right. Students and staff members have no expectation of privacy in any material that is stored, transmitted, or received via the school's electronic network computers. The school reserves the right to monitor, inspect, copy, review and store at any time and without prior notice any and all usage of the computer network and Internet access and any and all information transmitted or received in connection with such usage.
- 2. <u>Unacceptable Uses of Network</u>: The following are considered unacceptable uses and constitute a violation of this policy:
 - a. Uses that violate the law or encourage others to violate the law, including but not limited to transmitting offensive or harassing messages offering for sale or use any substance whose possession or use is prohibited by the school's student discipline policy; viewing, transmitting, or downloading pornographic material or materials that encourage others to violate the law; intruding into the networks or computers of others; and downloading or transmitting confidential, trade secret information, or copyrighted materials.
 - b. Uses that cause harm to others or damage to their property, including but not limited to, engaging in defamation (harming another's reputation by lies); employing another's password or some other user identifier that misleads message recipients into believing that someone other than you is communicating or otherwise using his/her access to the network or the Internet; uploading a worm, virus, other harmful form of programming or vandalism; participating in "hacking" activities or any form of unauthorized access to other computers, networks, or other information.
 - c. Uses that jeopardize the security of student access and of the computer network or other networks on the Internet.
 - d. Uses that are commercial transactions. Students and other users may not sell or buy anything over the Internet. Students and others should not give information to others, including credit card numbers and social security numbers.
 - e. Students are prohibited from using e-mail; this includes school e-mail accessed through a web browser. E-mail access may be given to students on a case-by-case basis (e.g., foreign exchange students keeping in contact with home). Students are prohibited from joining chat rooms, unless it is a teacher-sponsored activity.
 - f. Expressing personal beliefs or philosophies that violate Holy Spirit Catholic School's values, government laws, ordinances or regulations.
 - g. Utilizing "Chain Mail" or other frivolous email communication.

INTERNET SAFETY

Each school computer with Internet access shall have a filtering device that blocks entry to visual depictions that are (1) obscene, (2) pornographic, or (3) harmful or inappropriate for students, as defined by the Children's Internet Protection Act.

The school will also monitor the online activities of students, through direct observation and/or technological means, to ensure that students are not accessing such depictions or other material that is inappropriate for minors.

The term "harmful to minors" is defined by the Communications Act of 1934 (47 USC Section 254 [h][7]), as meaning any picture, image, graphic image file or other visual depiction that:

- taken as a whole and with respect to minors, appeals to a prurient interest in nudity, sex or excretion;
- depicts, describes, or represents, in a patently offensive way with respect to what
 is suitable for minors, an actual or simulated sexual act or sexual contact, actual or
 simulated normal or perverted sexual acts, or a lewd exhibition of the genitals;
- taken as a whole, lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value as to minors.

Filtering should only be viewed as one of a number of techniques used to manage student's access to the Internet and encourage acceptable usage. It should not be viewed as a foolproof approach to preventing access to material considered inappropriate or harmful to minors. Filtering should be used in conjunction with:

- Educating students to be "net-smart";
- Using recognized Internet gateways as a searching tool and/or home page for students, in order to facilitate access to appropriate material; - Using "Acceptable Use Agreements";
- Using behavior management practices for which Internet access privileges can be earned or lost;
- Appropriate supervision. Building principals shall monitor student Internet access.

CONFIDENTIALITY OF STUDENT INFORMATION

Personally identifiable information concerning students may not be disclosed or used in any way on the Internet without the permission of a parent or guardian or, if the student is 18 or over, the permission of the student him/herself. Users should never give out private or confidential information about themselves or others on the Internet, particularly credit card numbers and social security numbers. A supervising teacher or administrator may authorize the release of directory information, as defined by law, for internal administrative purposes or approved educational projects and activities.

INTERNET ACCESS CONDUCT AGREEMENT

Each student and his/her parent(s)/legal guardian(s) will be required to sign and return to the school at the beginning of each school year the Internet Access Conduct Agreement prior to having access to the school's computer system and/or Internet service.

WARRANTIES / INDEMNIFICATION

The school makes no warranties of any kind, express or implied, in connection with is provision of access to and use of its computer networks and the Internet provided under this policy. The school is not responsible for any information that may be lost, damaged, or unavailable when using the network, or for any information that is retrieved or transmitted via the Internet. The school will not be responsible for any unauthorized charges or fees resulting from access to the Internet and any user is fully responsible to the school and shall indemnify and hold the school, its trustees, administrators, teachers, and staff harmless from any and all loss, costs, claims, or damages resulting from such user's' access to its computer network and the Internet, including but not limited to any fees or charges incurred through purchase of goods or services by the user. The user, or, if the user is a minor, the user's parent(s)legal guardian(s) agrees to cooperate with the school in the event an investigation of a user's use of his/her access to its computer network and the Internet.

VIOLATIONS

If any user violates this policy, the student's access will be denied, if not already provided, or withdrawn and he/she may be subject to additional disciplinary action. The building principal will make all decisions regarding whether or not a user has violated this policy and any related rules or regulations and may deny, revoke or suspend access at any time with his/her/their decision being final.

APPENDICES

- ➤ 2018-19 School Calendar
- > Parent/Student Forms ... sign-off sheet
 - o Handbook Verification
 - o Computer and Internet Acceptable Use Policy for Students
 - O Photo, Video, Website Permission
- ➤ HSCS Student/Parent Technology Use Agreement (iPads K-8)
- ➤ Food allergy Action Plan
- ➤ Field Trip
 - o Parent/Guardian Consent Form
 - o Driver Information Sheet
 - o Volunteers Driver Form
 - o Adult Liability Waiver
- Medication/Treatment Authorization Form OTC
- Medication/Treatment Authorization Form Prescribed
- > Athletic Participation Contract

Holy Spirit Catholic School

2018 - 2019 Master Calendar

MAP Testing

MS Honor Roll Presentations

	JULY												
SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT							
1	2	3	4	5	6	7							
8	9	10	11	12	13	14							
15	16	17	18	19	20	21							
22	23	24	25	26	27	28							
29	30	31											

			AUGUS	Т			
SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT	
			1	2	3	4	
5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	3
26	27	28	29	30	31		5

SEPTEMBER											
SUN	SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT										
							1				
2	3	4	5	6	7		8	4 12			
9	10	11	12	13	14		15	5 17			
16	17	18	19	20	21		22	5 22			
23	24	25	26	27	28		29	5 27			
30											

OCTOBER												
SUN	SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT											
	1	2	3	4	5	6	5					
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	5					
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	3					
21	22	23	24	25	26	27	5					
28	29	30	31				3					
							1					

NOVEMBER												
SUN	SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT											
				1	2	3	1					
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	5					
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	5					
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	2					
25	26	27	28	29	30		5					

DECEMBER												
SUN	SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT											
						1						
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	5					
9	10	11	12	13	14	15	5					
16	17	18	19	20	21	22	5					
23	24	25	26	27	28	29						
30	31											

U	Student days											
			JANUARY									
	Professional	SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT				
				1	2	3	4	5				
	1st day of the qtr	6	7	8	9	10	11	12				
		13	14	15	16	17	18	19				
	Midterm	20	21	22	23	24	25	26				
		27	28	29	30	31						
	Student Holiday											

1/2 day school	FEBRUARY									
	SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT			
PT Conferences						1	2			
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9			
Last day of school	10	11	12	13	14	15	16			
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23			
2:30 Early Out	24	25	26	27	28					
Teacher Retreat										
Ursuline Center				MADCL						

MARCH						
SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						

APRIL						
SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30				

MAY						
SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	
						1

JUNE						
SUN	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30						

Holy Spirit Catholic School 2820 Central Avenue Great Falls, MT 59401

HOLY SPIRIT CATHOLIC SCHOOL PARENT/STUDENT AGREEMENT FORM 2018-19

If you have more than one child at Holy Spirit Catholic Sch		
Student Name:	Grade:	
Parent Name:		
Handbook Verification		
We have received and completely reviewed the Holy Spir comply with the rules and policies stated in the handbook	_	:О
Parent Signature:	Date:	
Student Signature:	Date:	
Computer and Internet Acceptable Use Policy for Student I have read the Computer and Internet Acceptable Use agree to comply with this policy. As the student's pare computer services provided by the school.	Policy for Students in the Parent/Student Handbook annt I grant permission for my student to access netwo	
Parent Signature:	Date:	
I have read the Computer and Internet Acceptable Use agree to comply with this policy.	Policy for Students in the Parent/Student Handbook an	d
Student Signature:	Date:	
Photo, Video, Website Permission	normicsion to use my shild's name, photographic imag	_
I do hereby give and grant to Holy Spirit Catholic School and/or video image in school publications, school prod and/or school website.	-	
Parent Signature:	Date:	

Please return this sign-off sheet to the main office no later than 2 weeks after the first day of attendance.

HSCS Student/Parent Technology Use Agreement

For the School Year: 2018-19

The iPad is the property of HSCS and as such, all terms of the HSCS Acceptable Use Agreement apply. Holy Spirit Catholic School retains the right to revoke the privilege of use of an iPad; misuse may result in disciplinary action.



Rules for iPad Use and Care:

- 1. The iPad must only be used for educational purposes.
- 2. The iPad must not be used to access unethical sites or personal email. The school also maintains the right to block any sites it deems inappropriate.
- 3. The iPad, once formatted by HSCS, may not be modified in any way, which includes the adding or deleting of app(s).
- 4. Students must delete any photos or videos that pertain to an assignment once the assignment has been turned in.
- 5. The school-provided iPad case must be used at all times and must not be removed. Students must also take care to do nothing that could adversely affect the functioning of any school iPad.
- 6. The iPad, and any accessories (i.e. headphones), must be returned to the charging cart prior to the end of each school day.
- 7. The iPad is the property of HSCS and may be seized and reviewed by a staff member at any time. Students can have NO expectation of privacy regarding materials which they have put on an iPad or on a school-supplied or school-supported email service.
- 8. Any damage to the iPad will be discussed with the principal, and fines may be assessed to the family.
- 9. The school maintains the right to locate and to check the search history of any iPad at any time.

Students must adhere to all Rules for iPad Use and Care.

x	
Student's First Name & Last Name	
x	

Parent's Signature Date

Catholic Mutual. . . "CARES"

DEALING WITH FOOD ALLERGIES IN SCHOOLS

Children suffering from food allergies has become more prevalent in the last few years. While the majority of these food allergies are easily manageable, many of them can be life threatening. The risk of accidental exposure to foods can be reduced in the school setting if schools work with students, parents and physicians to minimize the risk and provide a safe educational environment for students with these allergies. Since Catholic schools have no legal obligation to enroll a child with a food allergy, it is acceptable for your school to decide not to take on this added responsibility.

The following guidelines provided by the Food Allergy & Anaphylaxis Network (FAAN) should be followed to manage students with food allergies.

Family's Responsibility

Notify the school of the child's allergies.

- 1. Work with the school to develop a plan to accommodate the child's needs.
- 2. Provide written medical documentation, instructions and medications as directed by the child's physician. Use the Food Allergy Action Plan as a guide (see attached). Also, should include a photo of the child on the Action Plan form.
- 3. Provide properly labeled medications and replace medications after use or when expired.
- 4. Educate the child in the self-management of their food allergy. This would include: strategies for avoiding exposure; safe and unsafe foods; symptoms of allergic reactions; how to tell an adult when they are having allergy symptoms; how to read food labels (age appropriate).
- 5. Review procedures with the school, the child's physician, and the child after a reaction has occurred.
- Provide up-to-date emergency contact information.

School's Responsibility

- 1. Notify parents and the student that the school cannot guarantee an allergy-free environment.
- 2. Ensure that all staff understands food allergies; can recognize symptoms; knows what to do in case of an emergency; and works with other school staff to eliminate the use of allergens in the student's meals, educational tools, arts and crafts projects, etc.
- 3. Practice the Food Allergy Action Plan before an allergic reaction occurs to ensure the plan is efficient.
- 4. Ensure that medications are appropriately stored, and be sure that an emergency kit is available containing the physician's standing order for epinephrine.

- 5. Designate and properly train school personnel to administer medications.
- 6. Be prepared to handle a reaction and always ensure a trained staff member is available during the day, regardless of time or location.
- 7. Discuss field trips and other special activities with the family of the child to decide appropriate strategies for managing the food allergy.
- 8. Discourage children from "trading" food.
- 9. Ensure all surfaces such as tables and toys be washed clean of contaminating foods.
- 10. Encourage all students to wash hands after handling food.
- 11. If needed, designate a specific table in the cafeteria for children with food allergies.

Student's Responsibility

- 1. Do not trade food with other students.
- 2. Do not eat anything with unknown ingredients or known to contain the food allergen.
- 3. Need to be proactive in the care and management of their food allergies and reactions (age appropriate).
- 4. Need to notify an adult immediately if they believe they have eaten or been exposed to the food allergen.



Food Allergy Action Plan Form

DO NOT HESITATE TO CALL 911

ALLERGY TO:							
Student's Name:			_ D	OOB:			
Student's Teach	er: ——		<u> </u>	irade: ———			
Asthmatic: □YES (High Risk for Severe Reaction) □No							
System	Sympt	loms					
MOUTH THROAT* SKIN GUT LUNG* HEART* The severity of s threatening situ	THROAT* Itching and/or a sense of tightness in the throat, hoarseness, and hacking cough SKIN Hives, itchy rash, and/or swelling about the face or extremities GUT Nausea, abdominal cramps, vomiting, and/or diarrhea LUNG* Shortness of breath, repetitive coughing and/or wheezing						
threatening situ	iation						
ACTION for	MINO	R Allergic Reaction:					
If only symptom	s are:			, give			
Then call: □Me	other PH:	□Father	PH:	☐Emergency Contacts (on file in the school office)			
□ If co	ondition	does not improve in ten (10)) minut	es, follow the steps for MAJOR Reaction (below)			
ACTION for	MAJO	R Allergic Reaction:					
If the student has ingested food that he/she is known to be allergic to or he/she is suspected to have ingested food or if the symptoms are:							
Then call: 911	□Mot	ther □Father PH:	□En	nergency Contacts (on file in the school office) PH:			
Parant Signatura				Data			

FIELD TRIP



PARENTAL/GUARDIAN CONSENT FORM

Student/Participant:					
Birth Date:	Sex: □Male □ Female				
Parent/Guardian's Name:					
Home Address:	City/Zip:				
Home Phone:	Business Phone:				
I,					
School:					
Type of event: Desti	fination of event:				
Individual in charge:					
Estimated time of departure:	Estimated time of return:				
Mode of transportation to and from event:					
As a parent and/or legal guardian, I remain legally responsible for any personal actions taken by the above named minor ("participant"). I agree on behalf of myself, my child named herein, or our heirs, successors, and assigns, to hold harmless and defend the Diocese, its officers, directors and agents and the Diocese, chaperones or representatives associated with the event arising from or in connection with my child attending the event or in connection with any illness or injury or cost of medical treatment in connection therewith and I agree to compensate the Diocese, its officers, directors and agents and the Diocese, chaperones or representatives associated with the event for reasonable attorney's fees and expenses arising in connection therewith.					
Signature:	Date:				

FIELD TRIP



DRIVER INFORMATION SHEET

DRIVER	ł .					
Name	_		Date of Birth			
Address	Address			Social Security #		
Phone #	Driver's License				Date of Expiration	
VEHICI	E THAT WILL BE	USED				
Name of Own				Model of Vehicle		
Address of Ov	vner			Make of Vehicle		
License Plate	•			Year of Vehicle		
	If more than one vehicle is to	be used, the aforement	ione	d information must be prov	rided for each vehicle.	
INSURA	NCE INFORMATI	ON				
Insurance Con						
Policy#						
Date of Policy	Expiration					
Liability Limi	ts of Policy (Please note: The mir	nimal, acceptance liabi	lity l	imit for privately owned vo	chicles is \$100,000/\$3000,000)	
	rivately owned vehicle, the insurance , your insurance is primary.	coverage is the limit of t	he in	surance policy covering that	specific vehicle. Please be aware that as a	
In order to				e school and those we serv ave had in the last five yea	ve, we must ask each driver to list all rs:	
Year	Accident / Moving Violation					
I understand that as	irmation given on this form is true and correct a volunteer driver, I must be 21 years of age o in effect on any vehicle used to transport parti	er older, possess a valid driver	's licer	nse, have the proper and current lice	one and vehicle registration, and have the required	
Signature					Date	

FIELD TRIP



Field Trip Handbook

VOLUNTEER DRIVER'S FORM

This form is to be used for any person not employed by the Diocese or one of its Catholic schools, driving at vehicle owned by the Diocese or one of its Catholic schools.

SCHOOL VEHICLE

School:						
School Sponsor	School Sponsored Event: Number of Passengers:					
Date and Time	Date and Time of Event:					
DRIVER						
Name			Date of Birth			
Address			Social Security #			
Phone #		Driver's License		Date of Expiration		
	provide for the safety of our si volunteer driver to list all ac					
Year	Accident / Moving Violation					
Thank you for helping us with our transportation needs.						
Signature, Volunteer Driver Date						
Signature, Sch	Signature, School Representative Date					

FIELD TRIP



ADULT LIABILITY WAIVER

In addition to the Field Trip Health Information/Release form, each adult participant, including group leaders and chaperones, must sign this form.

RELEASE OF LIABILITY

officers, directors, agents,	, agree on behalf of myself, my heirs, assigns, executors res, to hold harmless and defend the Diocese, its Catholic schools, its employees, or representatives associated with the field trip from and amage arising from or in connections with my participation in the field
Name:	Date:

<u>Medication/Treatment Authorization Form</u> <u>Over The Counter Medication</u>

<u>Medication/Treatment Authorization Form</u> <u>Prescribed Medication</u>

Athletic Travel Release Form



MEDICATION/TREATMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM Prescribed Medication

Student's Name: Grade:							
	Date of Birth:						
The following section is to be completed by the prescribing physician for							
	prescription medi	cation:					
(A separate)	(A separate form must be completed for each medication or treatment prescribed)						
below. I have prescrit	The student named in this document is under my medical supervision for the diagnosis described below. I have prescribed the following medication/treatment, which is necessary to be given in school. I am aware that non-medical staff may administer this physician prescribed service.						
This order is effective	e from:	To:					
Diagnosis: (for this medication/treatment)							
Treatment:	eatment:						
Name of Medication:	Brand Name:	Generic Name:					
Strength (i.e. mg/tab)							

Instructions to assist the student in the self-administration of the medication

Amount (i.e. "2 tablets or 1 teaspoon"):				Time(s): (i.e. "10AM, Noon, and 2PM"):		
Frequency (i.e. "every 4 to 6 hours as needed for pain"):				Duration (i.e. "10 days")		
Route:	□Oral			□Topical	□Inhaled	
	□ Injection →	→	→	□ Subcutaneous	☐ Intramuscular	
	☐ Other (describe)					
Time medication is given at (f applicable):	home					
Possible side effects:						
Is student authorized to car	ry and use asthma ir	nhalation m	nedicat	ion or EpiPen?	☐ Yes	□ No
Has student been instructed in the use of asthma inhaler or EpiPen? ☐ Yes ☐ No						
The authorization for possession or self-administration of asthma, severe allergy, or anaphylaxis medication must be completed entirely by the parents and the physician for a student to be allowed to possess and/or self-administer asthma or severe allergy medication or an Epi-Pen.						
Other Information:						
Physician Signature: Physician Name:			Date: _			
Office Address:		—— Phone	: —			
The following section is to be completed by the parent or legal guardian:						
I hereby grant permission to the administration or his/her designee to assist in the self-administration of the prescribed medication and/or treatment to my child while in school and away from school while participating in official school activities. It is my responsibility to notify the school if and when these orders change.						
Parent/Guardian name: _			R	elationship:		
Phone #:		—— Phor	ne #: .			
Signature:		Date	:			

Holy Spirit Catholic School Athletics

Parent/Student Athlete Contract

Welcome to Holy Spirit *Catholic* School Athletics! We are looking forward to an enjoyable season that will be a positive experience for student athletes, parents, coaches, their families and guests. Together, as partners, we can provide a faith based, fun, safe and positive athletic experience for all participants in our program. Our student athletes and parents will be held to a high standard of behavior in all athletic events. Please take time to read this contract, sign and return it along with other registration paperwork.

Holy Spirit Student Athlete Commitments:

- 1. I will strive to give my best to the team in every practice and in every game.
- I will be on time to practices and games. I will not miss a practice or a game unless my coach or athletic director approves that absence.
- I will cooperate with my coach and my teammates. This cooperation will make me a better athlete and my team more successful.
- i will play hard while exhibiting exemplary sportsmanship and my behavior will be a positive reflection upon my family, team, Holy Spirit Catholic School and myself.
- 5. I will accept winning with class and losing with dignity.
- I will be an example of Christ in all my actions on and off the field/court.
- I will remain academically eligible and meet standards established by the principal for participation in extracurricular activities.

Holy Spirit Parent-Guardian Commitments:

- 1. I will reinforce my student athlete's commitments (above) to this program.
- I will show positive support for all coaches and officials working with my child. I will treat all players, officials
 and fans with respect regardless of race, gender, creed or ability in order to encourage a positive and
 enjoyable experience for all. I will be an example of Christ in all of my actions at St. Joseph sporting events.
- I will remember that we are all part of the Catholic community and that the game is for youth and not for adults.
- 4. I will be respectful in my communication with coaches, fans and players.
- I will observe a "cooling off" period of no less than 24 hours should I have an issue to discuss with my child's
 coach. Emotions are often high after a contest and conversations are more productive if both are able to
 take time to reflect on the game. One exception: If the coach's behavior puts your child's safety at risk speak
 to him/her as soon as you can safely do so.
- Holy Spirit demands a sports environment that is free of drugs, alcohol and tobacco and I will refrain from their use at all sporting events.
- 7. I will do my best to make the Holy Spirit sports experience fun for my child.
- 8. I will turn in registration paperwork and pay registration fees by the advertised due date.
- In the event all sports equipment/uniforms are not returned after the season in a timely manner, I will reimburse Holy Spirit the cost associated in replacing the non returned equipment/uniforms.

Print Parent/Guardian Name	Signature Parent/Guardian	Date
Print Student Athlete Name	Signature Student Athlete	Date